
City Council Agenda

SEPTEMBER 8, 2015
6:00 p.m.
City of Turlock Yosemite Room
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California

Mayor
Gary Soiseth

City Manager
Council Members Roy W. Wasden

William DeHart, Jr. Steven Nascimento City Clerk
Matthew Jacob Amy Bublak Kellie E. Weaver

Vice Mayor City Attorney
Phaedra A. Norton

Moment of Reflection: In recognition of efforts of the City of Turlock Fire Department
Strike Team Personnel

1. A. CALL TO ORDER

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG

2. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS &
PRESENTATIONS

A. Recognition: Turlock Fire Captain Kain Packwood and Turlock Fire Battalion Chief Bill
Becker

B. Recognition: Key to the City, His Grace Bishop Mar Awa Royel, Assyrian Church of the
East

C. Proclamation: Breast Cancer Awareness Month, October 2015, supported by Turlock
Fire Department

D. Proclamation: Retirement of City Employee – Fire Chief Tim Lohman
E. Proclamation:  CSU Stanislaus Warriors Golf, 2015 California Collegiate Athletic

Association Tournament Champions
F. Proclamation: The International Rescue Committee

SPEAKER CARDS: To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available
for any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment.  Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City
Clerk or Police Officer.

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary.

EQUAL ACCESS POLICY: If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request.

NOTICE: Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s
consideration of the item.

AGENDA PACKETS: Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the
documents before the meeting.



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 2

3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS:

1. Ad Hoc Sub Committee for Tree Maintenance/Sidewalk Repair Programs
(Councilmember DeHart)

2. Internet Presence Committee (Councilmember Jacob)

B. STAFF UPDATES

1. Capital Projects and Building Activity (Pitcock)
2. Water Conservation Update (Cooke)

C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
This is the time set aside for members of the public to directly address the City Council on any item of interest to
the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council and to address the Council on any item
on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will be allowed five (5) minutes for your comments.
If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked to defer your remarks until the Council
addresses the matter.

No action or discussion may be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that
Council may refer the matter to staff or request it be placed on a future agenda.

4. A. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS

5. CONSENT CALENDAR
Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this
meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items.

A. Resolution:  Accepting Demands of 7/23/15 in the amount of $594,698.03; Demands of
7/30/15 in the amount of $1,670,778.89; Demands of 8/6/15 in the amount of
$476,759.07; Demands of 8/13/15 in the amount of 1,033,842.40

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of Special Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting
of August 11, 2015; Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 11, 2015

C. 1. Motion: Accepting staff report on the response to the Stanislaus County Civil Grand
Jury Case #15-02C: Stanislaus County Public Transit System
2. Motion: Accepting staff report on the response to the Stanislaus County Civil Grand
Jury Case #15-30GJ: Local Effects of Prison Realignment and California Assembly Bill
109

D. Motion:  Awarding bid and approving an agreement in the amount of $182,355.11 (Fund
306) with MHK Construction Inc., of Denair, California, for City Project No. 11-43, "North
Tegner Road and Taylor Road Intersection Improvements"

E. 1. Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final) in the decreased amount of
$54,347.23 (Fund 215) for City Project No. 12-35, “Various Road Rehabilitation,”
bringing the contract total to $802,952.07
2. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 12-35, “Various Road
Rehabilitation," and authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion

F. 1. Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 1 (Final) in the decreased amount of
$3,029.50 (Fund 217) for City Project No. 12-53, "Crowell Road Pedestrian
Improvements," bringing the contract total to $56,984.61



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 3

2. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 12-53, "Crowell Road
Pedestrian Improvements," and authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of
Completion

G. 1. Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final) in the decreased amount of
$14,278.80 (Fund 410) for City Project No. 13-61, "Drew Ave. Improvements Pedras Rd.
to W. Tuolumne Rd.," bringing the contract total to $288,901.20
2. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 13-61, "Drew Ave.
Improvements Pedras Rd. to W. Tuolumne Rd.," and authorizing the City Engineer to file
a Notice of Completion

H. 1. Motion: Approving an agreement for engineering consulting services for railroad
preemption in the amount of $22,000 (Fund 215) with CTC, Inc., of Fort Worth, Texas,
for City Project No. 14-28, “Intersection Improvements at Golden State Blvd. and
Fulkerth Rd.”
2. Resolution: Appropriating $12,000 in Gas Tax Section 2103 monies to account
number 217-50-511.48001_224 "Transfer Out to Fund 215 for Project 14-28" and
account number 215-40-420.38001_224 "Transfer in from Fund 217 for Project 14-28"
for City Project No. 14-28, “Intersection Improvements at Golden State Blvd. and
Fulkerth Rd.”

I. Motion: Approving a professional services agreement with Nelson\Nygaard Consulting
Associates, Inc., of San Francisco, California, in an amount not to exceed $99,950 for
City Project No. 14-75, “RFP for Short-Range Transit Plan”

J. Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $2,500 (Fund 410) for
City Project No. 15-23, "Hedstrom Road Storm Drain Improvements," bringing the
contract total to $79,543

K. 1. Motion: Making the determination that City Project No.15-28, "Brandon Koch
Memorial Skatepark," is exempt from the provisions of CEQA in accordance with Section
15303
2. Motion: Awarding base bid, alternate 1 and alternate 2, and approving an agreement
in the amount of $259,000 (Fund 228) with California Landscape and Design, of Upland,
California, for City Project No.15-28, “Brandon Koch Memorial Skatepark”
3. Resolution: Appropriating $109,400 to account number 228-60-608.51178
“Neighborhood Parks – Skate Park Relocation” from Fund 228 “Park Development Tax-
Community Parks” reserve balance to complete the necessary funding for this project

L. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 15-32, "Public Safety Facility
Bollards Repair and Miscellaneous Improvements," and authorizing the City Engineer to
file a Notice of Completion

M. 1. Motion: Making the determination that City Project No. 15-58, "Pedestrian Striping
Upgrades, Various Locations," is exempt from the provisions of CEQA in accordance
with 14 CCR §15301(c), “Repair or Maintenance of Existing Highways and Streets”
2. Motion: Awarding bid and approving an agreement in the amount of $96,250 (Fund
216) with Chrisp Company, Inc., of Fremont, California, for City Project No. 15-58,
"Pedestrian Striping Upgrades, Various Locations"
3. Resolution: Appropriating $60,000 to account number 216-40-421.51221 “LTF Non-
motorized Projects” to be funded using $10,000 from Fund 216 “Non-Motorized”
unappropriated reserves and $50,000 from Fund 217 “Gas Tax Section 2103”
unappropriated reserves for City Project No. 15-58, "Pedestrian Striping Upgrades,
Various Locations," to complete the necessary funding required for the project

N. 1. Motion:  Approving Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final) in the amount of $55,683.07
(Fund 215) for City Project No. 0763, “Intersection Improvements at Monte Vista and
Colorado,” bringing the contract total to $601,321.60



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 4

2. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 0763, “Intersection
Improvements at Monte Vista and Colorado," and authorizing the City Engineer to file a
Notice of Completion

O. Motion: Approving an Interdepartmental Agreement between the Housing Program
Services Division and the Engineering Division to provide design, construction
management and inspection services for the capital improvement projects/sidewalk
projects for the term of the Consolidated Plan from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017

P. Motion: Approving the reclassification of a vacant Senior Secretary position to Staff
Services Assistant position for the Municipal Services Department, Administrative
Division

Q. Motion: Authorizing the Mayor, City Manager or his designee to enter into a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Turlock Groundwater Basin Association for the
purposes of coordinating activities for compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act

R. Motion: Approving Amendment No. 2 to Keyes Community Services District Agreement
between the City of Turlock and the Keyes Community Services District for the sellback
of 0.1029 mgd of wastewater flow capacity and the purchase of an additional 430
lbs/day of BOD and 927 lbs/day of TSS disposal capacity

S. Motion: Approving Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement between
the City of Turlock and Larry Walker Associates for the preparation of a Mixing Zone
Field Study for the Turlock Harding Drain By-Pass Pipeline as required by the City’s
NPDES Discharge Permit, to extend the term of the contract for an additional nine (9)
months

T. Motion: Approving a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Turlock and
Municipal Financial Services for the preparation of a Water Fund Cash Flow Evaluation
in an amount not to exceed $14,880 (Non-General Fund 420-52-550.43320 “Special
Services/Projects”)

U. Motion: Approving a maintenance agreement between the City of Turlock and HSQ
Technology for maintenance service of the Telemetry software/hardware, in an annual
amount not to exceed $16,992, and a maximum amount of $33,984, for a period of
twenty-four (24) months

V. Motion: Approving a service agreement with Jorgensen Company, Inc., of Modesto,
California, for portable fire extinguisher inspections & services, for a period of twelve (12)
months, in an amount not to exceed $15,428

W. Motion: Approving a service agreement with Lucas Business Systems, Inc., of Modesto,
California, for a printer maintenance and management program, for a period of twelve
(12) months, in an amount not to exceed $33,460

X. Resolution: Rescinding Resolution No. 2013-165 and approving an increase in the
backfill permit fee maximum to $160.50 per project, for projects involving curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, driveways and ramps, in order to help property owners reduce the financial
burden associated with these repairs

Y. Motion: Approving a service agreement with James R Gibson, Dba JC Enterprises of
Modesto, California, for awning cleaning services, in an amount not to exceed $3,000,
for the period beginning September 9, 2015 and ending September 8, 2016

Z. Resolution:  Approving a new job description for the position of Public Facilities
Maintenance Team Leader, effective September 9, 2015

AA. Resolution: Re-appropriating unspent funds of $5,860 from Fiscal Year 2014-15, to
account number 110-20-200.47363 “Technology” from Fund 110 “General Fund” reserve
balance for the purchase of Microsoft Surface Pro 3s for command staff use



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 5

AB. Resolution: Re-appropriating unspent funds of $164,516 from Fiscal Year 2014-15 to
account number 112-10-116.44117 “Phone System,” funded by a transfer from 110-10-
112.48001_122 “Transfers Out to Fund 112 for Capital Purchases” from Fund 110
“General Fund” reserve balance, for the completion of the new phone system

AC. 1. Motion: Authorizing the Mayor, City Manager or designee to execute the CLEARS
Subscription Agreement/Renewal with West Publishing Corporation for 36 months to
provide continued access for Police Department personnel (up to 75 users) additional
investigative resources for data base searches in an amount not to exceed $6,294.84
2. Resolution: Appropriating $600 to account number 110-20-200.43215 “Cal ID
Program” from Fund 110 “General Fund” reserve balance for investigative resources for
data base searches

AD. Resolution: Approving a Memorandum of Understanding between the Turlock
Police Department and the Stanislaus County Auto Theft Task Force and authorizing the
Mayor, City Manager or designee to sign the agreement

AE. Resolution: Appropriating in Fiscal Year 2014-15 $58,585 to account number 242-00-
000-214.51015_009 “Computer Equipment Replacement-Network Public Safety/Server”
funded by receipt of proceeds in account number 110-20-200.35441 “Lease Proceeds
from LTD-IBM Server” of $57,500 and the appropriation of $57,500 to account number
110-20-200.48001_241 “Transfer to Fund 242-Lease IBM Server” and $1,085 from Fund
242 “Computer Replacement-Public Safety Network” reserve balance to record the
lease/purchase of a replacement IBM Server

AF. Resolution: Authorizing the release of unclaimed checks pursuant to California
Government Code Section 50050 and 50053 to the City of Turlock

AG. Motion: Rejecting Claim for Damages filed by Surinder P. Singh
AH. Motion:  Rejecting Claim for Damages filed by Alpha Woody
AI. 1. Motion: Approving an agreement between the City of Turlock and the Stanislaus

Regional Water Authority (“SRWA”) for interim legal services and authorizing the Mayor
or City Manager to execute said agreement
2. Motion:  Approving the appointment of Jennifer Land, Executive Assistant to the City
Manager/City Clerk Trainee, to the position of SRWA Interim Board Secretary

6. FINAL READINGS: None

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS
Challenges in court to any of the items listed below, may be limited to only those issues raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Turlock City Council at, or prior to, the public
hearing.

A. Request to approve a Water Transfer Agreement between the City of Turlock and Del
Puerto Water District for up to 13,000 acre-feet of transfer water annually and adopt a
Negative Declaration of Environmental Effect pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act. (Cooke)

Recommended Action:
Resolution:  Approving a Water Transfer Agreement between the City of Turlock and Del
Puerto Water District for up to 13,000 acre-feet of transfer water annually and adopting a
Negative Declaration of Environmental Effect pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 6

B. Request to amend the General Plan and rezone three parcels, totaling approximately 9.7
acres, from Community Commercial to High Density Residential to allow for the
construction of a 180-unit, 600-bed student housing complex, referred to as The Vista
student housing project. The properties are located at 900 W. Monte Vista Ave, 3000
Crowell Road, and 1010 W. Monte Vista Ave (Stanislaus County APNs 071-006-021;
071-073-007 & 009). The purpose of the project is to build a student housing community
where the individual bedrooms will be leased solely to California State University,
Stanislaus, students and all of the community amenities will be available for the
exclusive use of the student residents and their guests. A Planned Development
application is also included in this request that would allow for the construction of the
180 units. (Whitmore)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program for The Vista Student Housing Project

Resolution: Adopting General Plan Amendment 2015-03 (The Vista Student Housing)

Introduction of the Ordinance:

Ordinance: Amending the Zoning Map of the City of Turlock, California, attached to Title
9 of the Turlock Municipal Code [Rezone 2015-01- Planned Development 272 (The Vista
Student Housing)]

To be acted upon at the September 22, 2015, City Council Meeting:

Resolution: Establishing Conditions of Approval for Planned Development No. 272 (PD-
272) [Rezone 2015-01, The Vista Student Housing – Scheme 2]

8. SCHEDULED MATTERS

A. Request to approve an agreement between California State University, Stanislaus and
the City of Turlock to offer college students internships and service learning experience.
(Jacobs-Hunter)

Recommended Action:
Motion:  Approving an agreement between California State University, Stanislaus and
the City of Turlock to offer college students internships and service learning experience

B. Request to affirm or modify the Community Events and Activities Grants Funding as
submitted by the Parks, Arts and Recreation Commission as set forth in “Exhibit A” and
direct staff to initiate another funding cycle to award the remaining Community Events
and Activities grant funds of $5,750. (Van Guilder)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Affirming or modifying the Community Events and Activities Grants Funding
as submitted by the Parks, Arts and Recreation Commission as set forth in “Exhibit A”

Motion: Directing staff to initiate another funding cycle to award the remaining
Community Events and Activities grant funds of $5,750



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 7

C. Request to approve the purchase of six (6) replacement marked black and white police
vehicles for Turlock Police Department from Price Ford of Turlock, Turlock, California,
with all emergency equipment and aftermarket installation provided by LEHR Auto
Electric & Emergency Equipment of Sacramento, California, from account number 506-
00-000-213.51020 “Equipment Replacement” in an amount not to exceed $47,500 per
vehicle or $285,000 total cost. (Reid)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Approving the purchase of six (6) replacement marked black and white
police vehicles for Turlock Police Department from Price Ford of Turlock, Turlock,
California, with all emergency equipment and aftermarket installation provided by LEHR
Auto Electric & Emergency Equipment of Sacramento, California, from account number
506-00-000-213.51020 “Equipment Replacement,” in an amount not to exceed $47,500
per vehicle or $285,000 total cost

D. Request to accept AB109 Realignment Funds in the amount of $71,424.87 and
appropriate said funds to the proper revenue 266-20-255-360.35720 “Realignment
funds-Revenue” and expenditure account 266-20255-360.44030_000 “Minor Equipment
Miscellaneous.” (Amirfar)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Accepting AB109 Realignment Funds in the amount of $71,424.87 and
appropriating said funds to the proper revenue 266-20-255-360.35720 “Realignment
funds-Revenue” and expenditure account 266-20255-360.44030_000 “Minor Equipment
Miscellaneous”

E. Request to approve the purchase of one (1) Rosenbauer Fire Engine through the
Houston-Galveston Area Council, without compliance to the formal bid procedure in
accordance with Section 2-7-08(b)(5) of the Turlock Municipal Code, in an amount not to
exceed $600,000 and appropriate the necessary funding to complete the purchase.
(Jackson/Harcksen)

Recommended Action:
Motion: Approving the purchase of one (1) Rosenbauer Fire Engine through the
Houston-Galveston Area Council, without compliance to the formal bid procedure in
accordance with Section 2-7-08(b)(5) of the Turlock Municipal Code, in an amount not to
exceed $600,000

Resolution: Appropriating $50,000 to account number 506-00-000-304.51020 "Fire
Services Equipment Replacement" funded by a transfer from account number 116-30-
300.48001_090 "Transfers Out for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement" from Fund 116
"Special Public Safety-Fire" reserve balance for the purchase of a fire engine

F. Request to approve modifications to the Fire Chief job description effective September 8,
2015 and authorize the creation of a five (5) member review panel for Fire Chief
recruitment and appointing the Mayor and City Manager as co-chairs of the panel.
(Jacobs-Hunter)



Council Agenda
09/08/15

Page 8

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Approving modifications to the Fire Chief job description effective
September 8, 2015

Motion: Authorizing the creation of a five (5) member review panel for Fire Chief
recruitment and appointing the Mayor and City Manager as co-chairs of the panel

9. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

10. COUNCIL COMMENTS
Councilmembers may provide a brief report on notable topics of interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or
action by the legislative body.

11. CLOSED SESSION

12. ADJOURNMENT



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1418751.1 1

WATER TRANSFER AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE CITY OF TURLOCK
AND

DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT

This Water Transfer Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the CITY OF
TURLOCK ("City"), and DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT ("Del Puerto").

RECITALS

a. Del Puerto is a public agency of the State of California, duly formed and operating under
the laws of the state, and is empowered to enter into contracts to manage the water
supply available to it for the benefit of its constituent, and

b. The City of Turlock is a public agency of the State of California, duly formed and
operating under the laws of the state, and is empowered to enter into contracts to
manage its water resources for the benefit of its constituents, and

c. Del Puerto and the City are both signatories to the North Valley Regional Recycled
Water Program (“NVRRWP”) MOU, and

d. The City has submitted an application to the State Water Resources Control Board
(“SWRCB”) to obtain a Water Right Permit for the City’s recycled water and the City's
obligations as set forth in this agreement are subject to the conditions set forth in
paragraph 10 including, but not limited to, the State Water Board issuing the Water Right
Permit to the City, and

e. Del Puerto is entitled to receive Central Valley Project (“CVP”) water pursuant to a long-
term Water Service Contract No. 14-06-200-922-LTR1 between the United States Bureau
of Reclamation (Reclamation) and Del Puerto, said contract subject to severe and ongoing
shortages for various hydrologic and regulatory constraints, and

f. Del Puerto intends by this Agreement to (1) obtain additional water to offset in part
shortfalls in its CVP irrigation supply, (2) maintain the agricultural viability of District
lands, and (3) assist their landowners and water users in obtaining a reliable and affordable
water supply, and

g. By providing water to Del Puerto pursuant to this Agreement, the City intends to (1)
provide Regional economic benefit to both Del Puerto and the City, (2) provide for
reasonable and beneficial agricultural use of recycled water supplies by Del Puerto, (3)
continue to maintain and secure this water supply for the long term benefit of the City’s
constituents.



1418751.1 2

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. TERM. The term of this Agreement will be for a period of five (5) years. The five-year
period will commence upon the issuance by the State Board of the permit set forth in
paragraph 10. Six months prior to the end of the term either party shall notify the other party
their intent to renegotiate this Agreement for an additional term, provided the parties can
reach mutually agreeable terms.

2. TRANSFER AND QUANTITY. During the term of this Agreement, the City commits to
make available to Del Puerto, and Del Puerto agrees to purchase from the City, an initial
amount of water per calendar year (“Transfer Water”). The actual amount of Transfer Water
to be made available to and purchased by Del Puerto shall be determined in accordance with
paragraph 6 of this Agreement.  Del Puerto acknowledges that the Transfer Water is subject
to a 5% loss calculation under the terms of the USBR Warren Act Contract required for
conveyance and delivery in the Delta-Mendota Canal and that payment will be made for the
full amount transferred before said 5% loss, as herein provided.  The parties reserve the right
to contest the application of such loss with the United States Bureau of Reclamation.

3. WATER TO BE MADE AVAILABLE. City will make Transfer Water available from City’s
Regional Water Quality Control Facility, currently treating to advanced secondary and tertiary
levels, subject to the issuance of a Water Right Permit by the State Water Resources Control
Board.

4. PURCHASE PRICE. After receipt of approval from Reclamation for the conveyance of
Transfer Water under this Agreement, Del Puerto will pay Seventy-Five Dollars ($75) per acre
foot ("Purchase Price") for the Transfer Water, in addition to all other amounts set forth in
this Agreement, as follows:

a. Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) will be paid to City in cash upon the effective date
of this Agreement, which will constitute a deposit for the total estimated water mutually
agreed upon to be provided by City during all years of this Agreement. Said deposit shall
be refunded upon termination of this Agreement or applied against any outstanding
charges due to City by Del Puerto upon termination of this Agreement.

b. The City will issue monthly billing statements to Del Puerto for the Transfer Water
conveyed by Patterson Irrigation District facilities which will be due and payable on the
first business day of each month, and will be considered delinquent if not paid within
thirty (30) days of the due date.

c. In addition to the Purchase Price, Del Puerto shall pay additional amounts as set forth in
Section 5 below.

5. SCHEDULING AND PAYMENT. Concurrent with execution of this Agreement for
2015, and as soon as possible in each successive water year, City and Del Puerto will
cooperatively establish and mutually agree upon the amount and schedule for delivery of the
Transfer Water.



1418751.1 3

a. Del Puerto shall pay when due, directly to Reclamation, all rates, charges and/or
assessments imposed by Reclamation pursuant to its Warren Act contract.

b. Del Puerto shall pay when due, directly to the Patterson Irrigation District, all rates and
charges applicable to the transportation of the Transfer Water from the San Joaquin
River to the Delta-Mendota Canal pursuant to the terms of their wheeling agreement.

c. Del Puerto shall pay when due, directly to the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority, all rates, charges and/or assessments of any kind applicable to delivery of the
Transfer Water from the Delta-Mendota Canal.

6. DELIVERY AND MEASUREMENT. City and Del Puerto will work cooperatively with
Reclamation and any necessary intermediary agencies to accomplish the delivery of Transfer
Water. The delivery point for the Transfer Water to Del Puerto will be at the discharge of the
Patterson Irrigation District pumping facility.   The quantity of Transfer Water for which Del
Puerto will pay the City, shall be the quantity of Transfer Water measured by City at the final
effluent flow monitoring location within the Regional Water Quality Control Facility less
that amount diverted to other users through existing turnouts along the Harding Drain
Bypass pipeline, and does not include recycled water used for Pedretti Park, the Walnut
Energy Center and up to 2,000 acre feet per year provided to TID for agricultural
irrigation purposes, and any loss amount in the San Joaquin River that may be required
pursuant to SWRCB permit. Said quantity of Transfer water to be diverted and wheeled by
Patterson Irrigation District into the Delta-Mendota Canal adjacent to milepost 42.53L, and
subsequently delivered to Del Puerto through turnouts licensed to Del Puerto.

Del Puerto agrees that City has the right to utilized recycled and/or reclaimed water
including for those purposes set forth in the preceding paragraph and shall not object to any
such recycled and/or reclaimed water usage, transportation, sale in any court or any other
tribunal, including but not limited to, any change in point of discharge/place of use before
the State Water Resource Control Board.

7. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. Del Puerto agrees that all Transfer Water provided by City
pursuant to this Agreement will be used within the boundaries of Del Puerto Water District.
Del Puerto agrees that it will place all Transfer Water to an agricultural use that is reasonable
and beneficial, and shall comply with all applicable state, federal, and local regulations. Del
Puerto will maintain books and records with regard to the use of any and all water provided
pursuant to this Agreement sufficient to enable City to show proof of the reasonable and
beneficial use of said water.

8. NO ENTITLEMENT TO WATER. Del Puerto and City agree that the delivery of the
Transfer Water under this Agreement will not: (1) give Del Puerto a continued right to
acquire City water beyond the term of this Agreement, (2) be deemed a transfer of a
water right or of any ownership interest in water rights, or (3) be deemed any indication
or evidence of a reduction of City’s water demand or use.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW. The parties acknowledge that they have completed
review under the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") for the transfer
accomplished by this Agreement, and that Reclamation has completed review under the
National Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA") for the term of this Agreement.



1418751.1 4

10. WATER SUPPLY REDUCTIONS. City’s obligation to deliver Transfer Water and Del
Puerto’s obligation to receive and pay for Transfer Water pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement will, at all times, be subject to the following conditions: (1) any State Water
Resources Control Board permit issued to facilitate the transfer contemplated by this
Agreement; (2) applicable federal and state laws and regulations now in existence and as
may be modified from time to time which make it impracticable for City to provide any
Transfer Water, as determined by the City at its sole discretion; (3) failure of facilities;
intervening acts, including litigation and stream adjudication brought by third parties, or
actions of any state or federal agency exercising jurisdiction or claiming an interest and/or
right to reduce and/or modify operations and/or quantities of Transfer Water otherwise
available to City; (4) any action, legislation, ruling or determination adverse to City preventing
its ability to meet obligations under the Agreement and beyond the reasonable control of
City; and (5) any limitation on the ability of Patterson Irrigation District to pump the
Transfer Water from the San Joaquin River and deliver same to the Delta Mendota Canal.
City will make a good faith effort to oppose such reductions, but Del Puerto agrees that City
will not be liable for reductions of supply in this Agreement due to such causes. Water
supply to be delivered by City and Del Puerto’s obligation to pay for same under this
Agreement may be reduced to the extent such conditions occur.  In the event of a reduction
of supply caused by any of such conditions, Del Puerto will pay only for water actually
delivered. Each Party shall notify the other in writing as soon as practicable that a condition
necessitating a water supply reduction has occurred.  In the event any of such factors render
it impractical for either or both parties to substantially perform under this Agreement, either
party may terminate this Agreement prior to expiration of the term of this Agreement by
providing ten (10) working days written notice.

11. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION COSTS. City will defend its own interests in any
litigation or regulatory action challenging the validity of the City’s water rights or the legality
of the City’s ability to transfer water pursuant to those rights and, should Del Puerto be
named in any such litigation or regulatory action challenging the validity of City’s water rights
or legality of the City’s ability to transfer water pursuant to those rights, City shall also
defend, indemnify and hold harmless Del Puerto. Otherwise, except as provided in the
preceding sentence, the parties will each defend their own interests in litigation or regulatory
action involving this Agreement.

12. GENERAL INDEMNITY. Except as provided in Section 13, each party agrees to protect,
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party, its officers, agents, servants,
employees, and consultants from and against any and all losses, claims, liens, demands and
causes of action of every kind and character on account of personal injuries or death or
damages to property and, without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of
every character occurring or in any way incident to, connected with, or arising directly or
indirectly out of the performance or non-performance by the indemnifying party hereunder
or the indemnifying party’s officers, agents, servants, employees, or consultants. This
paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

13. WATER QUALITY. City makes no warranty or representations as to the quality or fitness
for use of the Transfer Water. The Parties acknowledge that Del Puerto is familiar with the
quality of the Transfer Water, and that Del Puerto shall be responsible for all necessary
measures at its own expense for any testing, treatment, and other steps required for the
intended uses of the Transfer Water.



1418751.1 5

14. FORCE MAJEURE. Except as otherwise provided herein, all obligations of the parties
hereto will be suspended so long as, and to the extent that, the performance thereof will be
prevented by earthquakes, fires, tornadoes, facility failures, floods, drowning, strikes, other
casualties or acts of God, orders of court or governmental agencies having jurisdiction over
the subject matter thereof or other events or causes beyond the control of the parties hereto.

15. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. It is agreed by the parties hereto that in this arid region the
water delivered herein is of unique value and that, in the event of breach of this Agreement,
specific performance of the Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions will be
proper injunctive relief, and such injunctive relief may be sought at any time during the term
of the Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF RIGHTS. Any waiver, at any time, by any party of its rights with respect to a
breach or default, or any other matter arising in connection with this Agreement, will not be
deemed to be a waiver with respect to any other breach, default or matter.

17. NOTICES. All notices that are required, either expressly or by implication, to be given by
any party to the other under this Agreement must be signed by the party giving the notice.
Any notices to Parties required by this Agreement must be delivered or mailed, United States
first-class postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

CITY OF TURLOCK
Attention: Michael Cooke, Municipal Services Director
156 S. Broadway, Suite 270
Turlock, CA 95380

DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT
Attention: Anthea G. Hansen, General Manager
17840 Ward Ave.
Post Office Box 1596
Patterson, CA 95363

Notice will be deemed given (a) two calendar days following mailing via regular or certified
mail, return receipt requested, (b) one business day after deposit with any one-day delivery
service assuring "next day" delivery, (c) upon actual receipt of notice, or (d) upon
transmission, if by facsimile or email, whichever is earlier. The parties will promptly give
written notice to each other of any change of address, and mailing or shipment to the
addresses stated herein will be deemed sufficient unless written notification of a change of
address has been received.

18. APPROVALS. Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon a
judgment, approval, review or determination of any party, such terms are not intended to be
and will never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or
determination to be arbitrary, capricious or unreasonable.

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between City
and Del Puerto and supersedes any oral agreement, statement or promise between them
relating to the subject matter of the Agreement. Any amendment, including oral



1418751.1 6

modifications, must be reduced to writing and signed by all parties to be effective.

20. ATTORNEYS FEES. If legal action or other proceeding is commenced as a result of a
dispute which arises under or relates to any provision of this Agreement, the losing party will
pay the prevailing party's actual attorneys' fees, costs, expert witness fees and other expenses
incurred in preparation for and conduct of that action or proceeding, appeal of judgment, and
enforcement and collection of judgment or award.

21. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same
instrument. This Agreement will not be effective until the execution and delivery between
each of the parties of at least one set of counterparts. The parties authorize each other to
detach and combine original signature pages and consolidate them into a single identical
original. Any one of such completely execute counterparts will be sufficient proof of this
Agreement.

22. MUTUAL DISSOLUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT.  Except as otherwise provided
herein, this Agreement may only be terminated prior to the expiration of its term upon
mutual agreement of both parties. City may terminate this Agreement if there is a material
change in conditions that affects City’s ability to perform or if Del Puerto takes any action
against any use of water identified in paragraph 6. Del Puerto may terminate this Agreement
if the Patterson Irrigation District pumping facility or alternative means is not available to
convey the Transfer Water.

CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal DEL PUERTO WATER DISTRICT, a
corporation political subdivision of the State of California

By: _____________________________ By: ______________________________
Gary Soiseth, Mayor Anthea G. Hansen, General Manager

or
_____________________________ Date: ____________________________
Roy W. Wasden, City Manager

Date:  ____________________________





















































































































































































































































































































































DWhitmore
Typewritten text
ATTACHMENT 3

































































































































Your Partner in Quality     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AMCAL Equities, Inc.  

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment  

Turlock - CSU Stanislaus Student Housing  

900 West Monte Vista Avenue 
Turlock, California 

28 July 2015 

www.geosphereinc.net

DWhitmore
Typewritten text
ATTACHMENT 4



 

Geosphere Consultants Inc. i 29 July 2015 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................................................... 1 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 PURPOSE AND AUDITORS .................................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 SCOPE OF WORK ............................................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.3 LIMITING AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.3.1 Limiting Conditions During the Site Visit ............................................................................................................... 2 
1.3.2 Data Gaps .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 
1.3.3 Significant Assumptions ........................................................................................................................................ 2 
1.3.4 Exceptions and Deletions to the ASTM E1527-13 Standard .................................................................................. 2 

2. PHYSICAL SITE SETTING .................................................................................................................................................... 3 
2.1 LOCATION ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 
2.2 TOPOGRAPHY AND HYDROLOGY ........................................................................................................................................... 3 
2.3 GEOLOGY AND HYDROGEOLOGY ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. SITE DESCRIPTION, OPERATIONS & HISTORY ................................................................................................................... 5 
3.1 GENERAL SITE DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

3.1.1 Real Estate Ownership Information ...................................................................................................................... 5 
3.1.2 Subject Property Layout ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

3.2 CURRENT SITE OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................................................. 5 
3.3 HISTORICAL SITE OPERATIONS .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

3.3.1 Historical Summary ............................................................................................................................................... 5 
3.3.2 Evaluation of Historical Information Sources. ....................................................................................................... 6 
3.3.3 Discussion of Historical Environmental Issues/ Assessments/ Investigations ....................................................... 6 

4. SITE ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS & REGULATORY REVIEW ........................................................................................ 7 
4.1 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL USE AND STORAGE ............................................................................................................................ 7 

4.1.1 Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) ...................................................................................................................... 7 
4.1.2 Aboveground Tanks (ASTs) .................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.2 WASTE MANAGEMENT ....................................................................................................................................................... 7 
4.2.1 Hazardous Waste .................................................................................................................................................. 7 
4.2.2 Non-Hazardous Waste .......................................................................................................................................... 7 
4.2.3 Other Regulated Waste ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.3 WATER SUPPLY, WASTEWATER AND STORM WATER ................................................................................................................ 7 
4.3.1 Water Supply ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 
4.3.2 Wastewater ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 
4.3.3 Storm Water .......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

4.4 AIR EMISSIONS .................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
4.4.1 Air Emissions Sources and Permitting ................................................................................................................... 8 

4.5 POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS (PCBS) .................................................................................................................................. 8 
5. SURROUNDING PROPERTIES ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

5.1 SUMMARY ........................................................................................................................................................................ 9 
5.2 CURRENT SURROUNDING PROPERTIES ................................................................................................................................... 9 
5.3 SURROUNDING PROPERTIES HISTORICAL SUMMARY ................................................................................................................. 9 

Table of Contents 
 

 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants Inc. ii 29 July 2015 

5.4 ADJOINING PROPERTY AGENCY REVIEW ................................................................................................................................. 9 
6. CONCLUSIONS ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 
7. REFERENCES ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
8. LIMITATIONS AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS ................................................................................................................. 14 

8.1 GENERAL LIMITATIONS ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 
8.2 ASTM LIMITATIONS......................................................................................................................................................... 14 
8.3 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

8.3.1 Environmental Database Search ......................................................................................................................... 15 
8.3.2 User Provided Information .................................................................................................................................. 15 

8.4 KEY ASTM DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................................... 16 
9. ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION ......................................................................................................... 18 

 

List of Figures 
 Figure 1 Site Location Map 
 Figure 2 Site Layout and Surrounding Area Map  
 
List of Appendices 
 Appendix A: Site Photographs 
 Appendix B: Historical Aerial Photographs and Topographic Maps  
 Appendix C: 2005 Phase I Environmental Report  
 Appendix D: User and Owner/Operator Questionnaires 
 Appendix E: Environmental Regulatory Database Report (Summary Radius) 
 Appendix F: Professional Profiles



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.         ES-1              29 July 2015 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc. (Geosphere) completed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of the property 
located at 900 West Monte Vista Avenue in Turlock, California (the “Site” or “Subject Property”). The Phase I ESA was 
conducted in accordance with the scope and limitations of ASTM Standard E 1527-13 Standard Practice for 
Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process. Exceptions to, or deletions from, 
E1527-13 are described in Section 1.3.4 of this report. 
 
This ESA covers 9.73 acres comprised of Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 071-073-009, 071-006-021 and 071-073-007.  
 
The three parcels comprising the Site are planned to be combined and developed into additional housing to be leased 
to students at California State University, Stanislaus, which is located on the opposite side of West Monte Vista Avenue.  
 
The Site is located in the City of Turlock and surrounded by mixed commercial/retail/ institutional/residential use.  
 
Ms. Tess Byler conducted a Site visit on 8 July 2015. The Site is currently vacant and publically accessible.  
 
Geosphere has identified the following conclusions associated with the Site (full details are provided in Section 6 of this 
report): 
 

Summary of Identified Issues 

ASTM E1527-13 Findings: 

Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs)1 

 The Site and surrounding areas may be affected by historical agricultural activities. The nearest well (about 700 
feet away at the corner of West Monte Vista and Crowell Avenue) contains detected nitrates and arsenic; 
however, the detected concentrations in 2014 meet California drinking water standards. In addition, soil at the 
site and surrounding areas may contain detectable pesticides and herbicides. Collectively, these historical 
agricultural impacts are considered a REC.  

Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions (CRECs)1 

 None identified.  
Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions (HRECs)1 

 None identified.  
De Minimis Conditions 

 The site is publically accessible and as such, there has been some minor disposal, such as excess driveway asphalt, 
landscaping debris, and trash.  

 

                                                        

1 Key ASTM definitions, including REC, CREC and HREC, are provided in Section 8 

Executive Summary 

 
 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        1                                                       29 July 2015 

1.1 Purpose and Auditors 

Geosphere has completed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of a 9.73-acre property at 900 West 
Monte Vista Avenue, Turlock, California (the “Subject Property” or the “Site”). The environmental assessment was 
performed in anticipation of a financial transaction involving the Site. 

A Site visit was conducted on 8 July 2015 by Ms. Tess Byler. The Site is vacant and publically accessible. This ESA 
covers 9.73 acres comprised of Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 071-073-009, 071-006-021 and 071-073-007. The 
three parcels comprising the Site are planned to be developed into additional housing to be leased to students at 
California State University, Stanislaus, which is located on the opposite side of West Monte Vista Avenue. The Site 
is located in the City of Turlock General Plan expansion area, with mixed commercial/retail/residential/institutional 
use.   

1.2 Scope of Work 

This environmental assessment was conducted in conformance with Geosphere’s proposal dated 9 June 2015 and 
with the requirements of American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Standard E 1527-13; Standard 
Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process. Exceptions to, or 
deletions from, E1527-13 are described in Section 1.3.4 of this report. 

This Phase I ESA sought to gather information regarding: (1) current and past property uses and occupancies; (2) 
current and past use of hazardous substances and petroleum products; (3) waste management and disposal 
activities that could have caused a release or threatened release of hazardous substances; (4) current and past 
corrective actions and response activities to address past and on-going releases of hazardous substances at the 
Subject Property; and (5) properties adjoining or located near the Subject Property that have environmental 
conditions that could have resulted in conditions indicative of releases or threatened releases of hazardous 
substances to the Subject Property.  

The scope of this Phase I ESA included:  

 An onsite inspection to evaluate current conditions and identify areas of potential concern;  
 A review of the history of the Subject Property and its vicinity through interviews and a review of various 

historical sources;  
 Observation of adjoining properties and properties in the local area to evaluate the potential for adverse 

environmental impact to the Subject Property; 
 Interviews/research of local city/county, tribal, state, and federal records, including contracting of Environmental 

Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) to identify regulatory listings for the Site and regulatory-listed facilities in the 
vicinity of the Site, as required in the regulatory records review section of the ASTM E1527-13; and 

 Interviews and/or requests for information from the User and Subject Property owner. 

The user did not request any “non-scope considerations” in ASTM Standard E 1527-13.  

 

1. Introduction and 
Background 

 
 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        2                                                       29 July 2015 

1.3 Limiting and Special Conditions 

1.3.1 Limiting Conditions during the Site Visit 

Geosphere was unable to fully observe a possible abandoned irrigation well due to debris in the area. No other 
limiting conditions were encountered during the Site visit. 

1.3.2 Data Gaps 

The following table summarizes the data gaps identified during the Site assessment.  

Table 1-1 Data Gap Summary 

Data Gap / Failure Sources Consulted to Address Data Gap Significance* 
An environmental lien search was not 
performed for the Subject Property. 

The User will perform an environmental lien 
search.  

Non-significant 

* “Significance” provides a qualitative indication of the implication of the identified data gap relative to the Environmental Professional’s 
(EP’s) ability to identify conditions indicative of releases or threatened releases to the subject property; the ‘significance’ of the data gaps 
are rated from low to high. “Non-significant” indicates that additional information to fill the data gaps is not likely to have a negative impact 
on Geosphere’s conclusions presented in this report. “Significant” indicates that it is Geosphere’s opinion that additional diligence or 
investigation (such as additional data review or physical sampling of environmental media) is required to address the data gap. 

1.3.3 Significant Assumptions 

No significant assumptions have been made.  

1.3.4 Exceptions and Deletions to the ASTM E1527-13 Standard 

Geosphere has not identified exceptions to, or deletions from the ASTM E1527-13 standard. 

 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        3                                                       29 July 2015 

2.1 Location 

The Site is located on the south side of West Monte Vista Avenue, between Cowell Road and Dels Lane in Turlock, 
California. The general location of the Subject Property is shown on Figure 1.  

2.2 Topography and Hydrology 

The subject property is located in a generally flat area, with ground surface elevations ranging between about 100 
and 105 feet above mean sea level. The topography has a gentle slope toward the south and west based on 
topographic contours.  

No surface water bodies are currently present at the subject property. The nearest surface water body is the man-
made lake/fountain feature located approximately 0.25 mile northeast of the subject property on CSU-Stanislaus 
near the corner of Crowell Road and West Monte Vista.  

The Site is part of the San Joaquin Watershed, with the San Joaquin River located approximately 10 miles to the 
west, the Tuolumne River about six miles to the north and the Merced River about six miles to the south.   

According to flood zone and National Wetland Inventory (NWI) data presented in the EDR® Radius Map™ Report 

reviewed by Geosphere, the Subject Property is not in the 100 year floodplain. The Department of Water 
Resources Best Available Maps (BAM) also indicates that the Site is not in an area of the 100-year flood 
(http://gis.bam.water.ca.gov/bam/ ).  

2.3 Geology and Hydrogeology 

The Site is located within the geomorphic province known as the Central Valley, which is divided into the 
Sacramento Valley and the San Joaquin Valley. Geologic materials consist of a thick sequence of unconsolidated 
and consolidated alluvial deposits that eroded from the Sierra Nevada mountains to the east.   

Groundwater underlying the Site is part of the larger San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin within the San Joaquin 
River Hydrologic Region. The San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin is further subdivided into nine subbasins, 
including the Turlock subbasin. The City of Turlock lies entirely within the Turlock subbasin (Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118).  

The Turlock Subbasin (Groundwater Subbasin 5-22.03) lies in the eastern portions of Stanislaus and Merced 
counties and has an areal extent of approximately 347,000 acres. The Subbasin is bounded by the Tuolumne River 
to the north, the Merced River to the south, the San Joaquin River to the west, and by crystalline rock of the Sierra 
Nevada foothills to the east. The Corcoran Clay aquitard separates groundwater in the Turlock Subbasin into an 
upper, unconfined aquifer and a lower, confined aquifer. 

Groundwater supplies municipal, industrial, and agricultural demands of the region. Surface water from the 
Tuolumne River and to a lesser extent, the Merced River, supplies a large proportion of agricultural irrigation 
demands within the Turlock Subbasin (City of Turlock, Urban Water Management Plan 2010).  

Soil at the Site consists of sandy loam based on USDA Unified soil classification maps. According to information obtained 
during Geosphere’s 2005 Phase I ESA, the Site is underlain by brown sand fill material from about 0 to 15 feet below 
ground surface (bgs) and native soils, including sandy silts, silty sands, and clays underlie the fill material.  

2. Physical Site Setting 

 

 

  

http://gis.bam.water.ca.gov/bam/


 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        4                                                       29 July 2015 

Based on groundwater elevations from the entire Turlock subbasin from 2006, regional groundwater flow is 
generally towards the west within the City of Turlock. Site-specific flow is unknown. Groundwater at the Site may be 
as deep as 30 feet below ground surface, according to an onsite boring performed by CEL on September 6, 2005. 
However, the 2005 Phase I Report also indicated that past drilling at CSU-Stanislaus indicated that groundwater 
can be encountered within 10 feet of ground surface.  

It is important to note that groundwater flow direction is influenced locally and regionally by the presence of 
heterogeneous features, including surface topography, recharge and discharge areas, perched layers, horizontal 
and vertical differences in the types of subsurface materials, proximity to pumping wells, and preferential pathways 
such as utility corridors.  

 

 

 

 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        5                                                       29 July 2015 

3.1 General Site Description 

3.1.1 Real Estate Ownership Information 

The Subject Property consists of three parcels: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 071-073-009, 071-006-021 and 071-
073-007.  According to Stanislaus County records, the following owners are identified:  

 071-073-009:  0 Crowell Road, Turlock, CA - Owner:  Genesis Family Enterprises, Inc. 
 071-006-021:  900 Monte Vista Avenue, Turlock, CA - Owner:  Phoenix Family LP 
 071-073-007:  0 Crowell Road, Turlock, CA - Owner:  Genesis Family Enterprises, Inc. 

3.1.2 Subject Property Layout 

The Subject Property is 9.73 acre of land situated on one irregular shaped parcel, bounded by West Monte Vista 
Avenue to the north, Crowell Road to the west, Dels Lane on the east, and open space to the south. The site is 
vacant and has no structures.   

The Site has underground utilities, including water and electricity. Storm drains were observed along the streets.    

A Site Layout Map and Surrounding Area is provided as Figure 2. Photographs of the Site are included as Appendix 
A.  

3.2 Current Site Operations 

There are no operations at Site.   

3.3 Historical Site Operations 

3.3.1 Historical Summary 

The Site and surrounding area have a history of agricultural operations. Turlock Irrigation District (TID) began in 
1887 as the first irrigation district in California. TID has been delivering irrigation water to growers since completing 
its gravity-fed water conveyance system of canals and laterals in 1900. The Tuolumne River is the District's primary 
source of water. Water for TID irrigation and hydroelectric power production is kept at Don Pedro Reservoir about 
50 miles east of Turlock.  

Concrete irrigation laterals were present at the Site and are evident in the earliest aerial photo from 1937, which 
show the Site in agricultural production. The Site was fallow or partially used for agricultural purposes (with the 
eastern portion showing more production) until about 1972 (Appendix B). The concrete irrigation laterals were 
removed from the Site in 2005, with only a small section remaining today in the central portion of the Site.   

The CSU-Stanisluas Campus opened in 1965 (https://www.csustan.edu/about/facilities). The Rite-Aid was 
constructed by 2009, and is present on the 2009 aerial photograph (Appendix B). The car wash is not present on 
the 2012 aerial photo, but is visible in the 2015 Google images.  

The Site has been vacant and not used for agricultural purposes since at least 1984. The surrounding area has 
been developed primarily as residential and commercial areas surrounding CSU-Stanislaus.  

3. Site Description, 
Operations & History 

 

 

  

https://www.csustan.edu/about/facilities


 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        6                                                       29 July 2015 

Historical topographic maps (1916-1987) do not indicate that the Site was used for orchards, although nearby areas 
are identified as such. The 1941 topographic map indicates the irrigation canal/lateral on the eastern portion of the 
Site. No other structures are identified at the Site.  

 Available city directory listings from 1964-2013 were evaluated. These listings suggest primarily residential listings 
and a few commercial entities on West Monte Vista Avenue and Crowell Road.  

3.3.2 Evaluation of Historical Information Sources. 

To determine past uses of the Subject Property and surrounding properties, Geosphere reviewed historical sources 
of information as outlined in the References section of this report (Section 7).  

The Site was placed on the historical aerial photographs (1937-2012) and topographic maps (1916-1987), and 
these figures are provided in Appendix B.  

Table 3-1 Historical Timeline 
Timeframe Discussion 

 1916-1936 
The Site was shown as vacant and nearby areas are shown as being used for agricultural purposes.  
Sometime from 1916 to 1936 the Site began to be used for crop production.  

1937 The Site and surrounding areas are used for agricultural purposes.   

1937-1972 
The Site is shown as cropped or fallow in aerial photos, with surrounding and nearby areas primarily 
used for crop and orchard production.   

1973-1976 
Nearby areas are developed for residential use, beginning southeast of the Site, with agricultural 
activities still present south of the Site.  The subject property appears vacant.  

1977-1987 
Residential development is extensive east and west of the Site by 1984.   
The subject property appears vacant.  

1988-2005 
Residential and commercial development continues. By 2005, the recharge basin and Rotary 
International Park are present along the southern Site boundary.  
The subject property appears vacant.  

2005-2012 
The Prime Car Wash is not present.  A 2005 Phase I is conducted on a portion of the Ste concludes 
no REC are present.  
The subject property appears vacant.   

Present Observations made at the time of Geosphere’s Site inspection are discussed throughout this report. 

3.3.3 Discussion of Historical Environmental Issues/ Assessments/ Investigations 

Geosphere reviewed the 2005 Phase 1 Site Assessment. This report is included as Appendix C.  

CEL Labs, Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 900 West Monte Vista Avenue, Turlock, California. 
Block 5. This report presents an initial Phase I evaluation of a portion of the Subject Property. It also presents a 
summary of a geotechnical boring at the Site, as described above.  No RECs were identified in this report.  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        7                                                       29 July 2015 

4.1 Hazardous Material Use and Storage 

No hazardous materials were observed stored at the Site during the Site visit.  

4.1.1 Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) 

No registered USTs are currently located on the Subject Property, and no visual indication of the potential presence 
of USTs was noted by Geosphere during the Site visit.  

4.1.2 Aboveground Tanks (ASTs) 

No ASTs are registered at the Site and no ASTs were observed to be present at the Site during the Site inspection 
by Geosphere.  

4.2 Waste Management  

4.2.1 Hazardous Waste  

No hazardous waste was observed at the Site during the Site visit. 

No records of hazardous waste shipments or outstanding violations were identified for the Site during Geosphere’ 

review of agency information and online databases. 

4.2.2 Non-Hazardous Waste 

Geosphere observed minor evidence of solid waste disposal on the Subject Property, including leftover driveway 
asphalt, landscaping debris and trash. 

4.2.3 Other Regulated Waste 

No other regulated wastes were observed stored or disposed of at the Site, including Universal waste consisting of 
spent fluorescent light bulbs, batteries or tires.    

4.3 Water Supply, Wastewater and Storm Water 

4.3.1 Water Supply 

The City of Turlock supplies water, wastewater and stormwater services in the area. Several water wells were 
indicated near the Subject Property, and an active irrigation line owned and operated by the Turlock Irrigation 
district runs along West Monte Vista Avenue. The closest City supply wells is located adjacent to the Site at the 
corner of West Monte Vista Avenue and Crowell Road. Monitoring data from 2014 for nitrates and arsenic meet 
California drinking water standards.  

No wells were observed on the Subject Property by Geosphere during the Site visit; however, the 2005 Phase I, a 
well pump was observed in the center of the property. A well pump is no longer present at the site, but cement 
irrigation piping and a vertical conduit was observed.  

4. Site Environmental 
Operations & Regulatory 
Review 

 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        8                                                       29 July 2015 

4.3.2 Wastewater 

No wastewater connections or discharges were observed at the Site.  

4.3.3 Storm Water 

The property was not evaluated during a precipitation event; based on topography, precipitation that falls on the 
Subject Property would likely drain via sheet/overland flow to a recharge basin that is present along the southern 
property Boundary. In addition, some storm water may also drain along West Monte Vista, Crowell Road and Dels 
Lane into the Ciy of Turlock Stormwater system.   

4.4 Air Emissions 

4.4.1 Air Emissions Sources and Permitting 

No air emission sources were observed at the Site  

4.5 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) 

The Site history indicates primarily crop or vacant lands. Historical use of PCB transformers at the Site was not 
documented; however past PCB transformers have a low probability to have occurred at the Site.  

No transformers or evidence of past transformers were observed on the Site during the Site visit.  

 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        9                                                       29 July 2015 

5.1 Summary 

The Site is located in an area of previous agricultural activities. Today the Site is surrounded by mixed commercial, 
institutional and residential use.  

5.2 Current Surrounding Properties 

Land use in the area of the Subject Property includes residential, commercial and institutional uses. The adjoining 
properties and nearby land use, are shown in Figure 2. 

Table 5-1 Current Surrounding Properties 

Direction Discussion 

North 

The northwest portion of the Site is adjacent to commercial area that includes a restaurant (Pizza 
Factory), a pharmacy (Rite Aid) and a car wash (Prime Shine). CSU-Stanislaus is located across 
Monte Vista Avenue.  
There is a closed Leaking Underground Storage Tank  (LUST) at 801 Monte Vista Avenue.  
The Rite Aid is a Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Large Quantity Hazardous 
Waste Generator since 2008. No violations have been recorded.  
CSU- Stanislaus is a RCRA Small Quantity Hazardous Waste Generator since 1996.  No 
violations have been recorded.  

East 
The east side of the Site is adjacent to a banking facility (Yosemite Farm Credit). There is a small 
strip that extends to Dels Lane, with adjacent residences.  

South 
The southwest portion of the property is adjacent to a recharge basin and a local park (Rotary 
International Park).  
The southeast boundary is adjacent to residential development.  

West The western boundary is adjacent to residential development.  

5.3 Surrounding Properties Historical Summary 

The development history of the surrounding properties is consistent with that of the subject property. Based on the 
information a review of historical maps, aerial photographs and records, the property has been a part of an 
agricultural setting since the early 1900s, and has been developed for residential, institutional and commercial uses 
since the 1960’s.  

5.4 Adjoining Property Agency Review 

Surrounding sites identified in EDR’s review of available databases are summarized in Table 5.3 below. There are 
no National Priority List (NPL or Superfund) listed sites within a mile of the Subject Property.  

 
  

5. Surrounding Properties  

 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        10                                                       29 July 2015 

Table 5-2 Adjoining Property Regulatory Listings 

Name 
Relative 

Distance/Direction 
Listing 

Discussion 

810 West Monte Vista 
Approximately 400 
feet north-northeast 

LUST, HIST 
CORTESE, and 

UST 

There is a Former Leaking Underground 
Storage Tank (LUST) at 801 West Monte 
Vista Avenue at CSU-Stanislaus.   

This Historical Cortese and LUST case was 
closed by the Central Valley Regional 
Water Quality Control Board in 1988.  

Geosphere reviewed the LUST closure 
documentation, which indicates that the 
only media affected was soil.    

Due to the closed case status and limited 
affected media, this site is not expected to 
represent a concern to the Subject 
Property.  

Oil and gas well 

Approximately 800 
feet south, at the 

corner of Gettysburg 
Street and Crowell 

Road  

None 

An oil and gas exploration well was 
installed in 1899 and abandoned in 1963.  

This well is not expected to represent a 
concern to the Subject Property.  

The data review for adjoining properties show that the adjacent sites do not have any other identified soil and 
groundwater contamination.  
 
The potential for historical sources within ¼ mile of the Site to have affected the Subject property is considered 
relatively low due to the locations (greater than 500 feet south and southeast of the Site) and historical listed 
operations (a diesel truck repair shop and two historical carpet cleaning establishments.)  In addition, Site 
groundwater is currently monitored and used by the City of Turlock. The closest well is located adjacent to the Site 
at the corner of West Monte Vista Avenue and Crowell Road.  

 

 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        11                                                       29 July 2015 

Geosphere has completed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in conformance with the scope and limitations 
of ASTM Practice E1527 of the Site (as defined in Section 1 of this report). Geosphere has not identified exceptions 
to, or deletions from the ASTM E1527-13 standard. This Phase I ESA has revealed no evidence of recognized 
environmental conditions in connection with the property except for the following: 

Summary of Identified Issues 

ASTM E1527-13 Findings: 

Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs)2 

 The Site and surrounding areas may be affected by historical agricultural activities. The nearest well (about 
700 feet away at the corner of West Monte Vista and Crowell Avenue) contains detected nitrates and 
arsenic; however, the detected concentrations in 2014 meet California drinking water standards. In addition, 
soil at the site and surrounding areas may contain detectable pesticides and herbicides. Collectively, these 
historical agricultural impacts are considered a REC.  
 

Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions (CRECs)1 

 None identified.  

Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions (HRECs)1 

 None identified.  

De Minimis Conditions 

 The site is publically accessible and as such, there has been some minor disposal, such as excess driveway 
asphalt, landscaping debris, and trash.  

 

 

                                                        

2 Key ASTM definitions, including REC, CREC and HREC, are provided in Section 8 

6. Conclusions 

 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        12                                                       29 July 2015 

The following sources were used in conducting the Phase I ESA detailed in this report. Where information obtained 
from these sources was determined to be useful by the Environmental Professional, it is summarized in the body of 
this report. Copies of prior environmental reports and other pertinent documents are appended. 

Table 7-1 Regulatory Agency Review 

Agency/Company Person Contacted Telephone Regarding 

Stanislaus County Ms. Dianne Parkinson  209- 525-6751 General site information and hazardous 
material/site records for Site and adjoining 
parcels 

Stanislaus County Mr. Walter Ward 209- 525-6710  Groundwater resources and wells 

Environmental Data 
Resources, Inc. 
6 Armstrong Road, 4th 
Floor 
Shelton, CT 06484 

Ms. Leslie Mirles 800-241-6476 Environmental Database Search Report, 
topographic maps, aerial photographs, 
city directories, fire insurance maps, 
Sanborn Maps, Building permits and city 
directory listings 

California Department of 
Toxic Substance Control 

Mr. Harold (Bud) Duke, 
PG 

916-255-3695 Comments on CEQA Initial Study and 
Negative Declaration dated July 13, 2015 

Internet resources NA NA CA State Clearinghouse for CEQA 
documentation Vista Student Housing 
Complex, Aerial photographs (Google 
Earth Pro); Site database searches, 
including Geotracker and Envirostor, 
Regional Water Quality Control Board.  

Turlock Irrigation District NA NA General history of agriculture in region 
and irrigation canals that previously 
existed on Site 
http://www.tid.org/about-tid/history 

California Department of 
Water Resources 
 

NA NA Best Available Maps 
http://gis.bam.water.ca.gov/bam/  
 
Groundwater Bulletin #118:  
http://www.water.ca.gov/groundwater/bull
etin118/index.cfm 

 
  

7. References 
 

 
 

 

  

http://www.tid.org/about-tid/history
http://gis.bam.water.ca.gov/bam/
http://www.water.ca.gov/groundwater/bulletin118/index.cfm
http://www.water.ca.gov/groundwater/bulletin118/index.cfm


 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        13                                                       29 July 2015 

Table 7-2 Summary of Historical Sources Reviewed 

Agency/Source of 
Information 

Data Provided 

Years Reviewed (if applicable) 

Subject Property 
Surrounding 
Properties 

USGS 
Topographic Maps 

Topographic Maps 1916, 1941, 1953, 1969, 
1976, and 1987 

1916, 1941, 1953, 1969, 
1976, and 1987 

EDR Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps Not available Not available 

EDR City Directories 1964, 1968, 1974, 1979, 
1984, 1988, 1992, 1995, 
2003, 2008, and 2013 

1964, 1968, 1974, 1979, 
1984, 1988, 1992, 1995, 
2003, 2008, and 2013 
 
 

EDR Aerial Photographs 1937, 1946, 1957, 1967, 
1972, 1984, 1987, 1998, 
2005, 2009, 2010, and 
2012 

1937, 1946, 1957, 1967, 
1972, 1984, 1987, 1998, 
2005, 2009, 2010, and 
2012 

Table 7-3 Other Documentation Reviewed 

Date Source 

September 2005 Consolidated Engineering Laboratories (CEL) Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 
Turlock Village Apartments and Shopping Center, 900 West Monte Vista Avenue, 
Turlock, California.  
See Appendix C.  

June 2011 City of Turlock, 2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

June 2015 City of Turlock, Planning Department CEQA Referral Initial Study and Notice of Intent to 
Adopt and Mitigated Negative Declaration, June 10.  

 

 .  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        14                                                       29 July 2015 

8.1 General Limitations 

There are a number of exclusions and limitations associated with this assessment. These are briefly 
outlined below: 

 This report has been prepared by Geosphere exclusively for Client and may not be relied upon by any other 
recipient, person or entity (together, henceforth, “Other Recipient”) without Geosphere’s express, written 

permission. Geosphere makes no warranties or representations to any Other Recipient and has no obligation 
to advise any Other Recipient regarding changes to this report or changes in applicable laws and regulations 
subsequent to the date of this report. In receiving this report, any Other Recipient agrees that that (a) it will 
make no claim against Geosphere that relates in any way to this report, or the Other Recipient’s access to this 

report, and (b) to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Other Recipient hereby releases Geosphere 
from, and will defend and hold harmless Geosphere from and against, any claim, action, suit, damage, loss, 
award, liability, expense, cost, or fees including attorneys’ fees arising from or relating to any use or disclosure 

of the report or any portion thereof by Other Recipient or any third party to whom Other Recipient discloses the 
Report.  

 Geosphere is an engineering consulting firm, and as such we make no representations regarding questions of 
legal or accounting interpretation. Consultation with an attorney and/or certified accountant should be made 
with respect to any legal or accounting matters, or items that require such interpretation, under any law, 
regulation or contract.  

 Geosphere did not independently verify information on publicly available databases. Therefore our findings are 
accurate and complete only to the extent that information provided to Geosphere was itself accurate and 
complete. 

 The conclusions presented in this report represent Geosphere’s professional judgment based on the 
information made available to us during the course of this assessment and are true and correct to the best of 
Geosphere’s knowledge as of the date of this report. 

 No sampling or testing of soils, waters or other materials was included as part of this assessment. However, 
reference may have been made to previous testing and sampling, as appropriate. 

 Unless otherwise stated within this report, Geosphere has assumed that the Site will continue to be used for 
current purposes. Geosphere’s assessment does not include provision for Site closure or change in land use, 
unless expressly stated above. 

 State-specific regulations related to property transfer (or ownership changes) may apply to the proposed 
transaction. Costs related to compliance with these State requirements were not included in Geosphere’s 
Assessment. 

8.2 ASTM Limitations 

The innocent landowner, contiguous owner, and prospective purchaser defenses to liability under CERCLA require 
that a person acquiring property conduct an all appropriate inquiry with respect to the Site. Geosphere has 
conducted this environmental assessment in accordance with the standards for conducting an all appropriate 

8. Limitations and Other 
Considerations 

 

 

  



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        15                                                       29 July 2015 

inquiry set forth at 40 CFR. Part 312. Those standards require the application of scientific principles and 
professional judgment to certain facts with resultant subjective interpretations and exercise of discretion. 
Professional judgments expressed herein are based on the facts currently available within the limits of the existing 
data, and data gaps identified herein, scope of work, budget, and schedule. Those standards also require that the 
client undertake certain additional inquiries. In addition, the liability defenses under CERCLA require, among 
several other things, that the client after the acquisition stop any continuing releases, prevent any future threatened 
releases and prevent or limit human, environmental or natural resource exposure to any hazardous substance 
released at the Site. Therefore, Geosphere makes no warranties, express or implied, including, without limitation, 
warranties as to merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, including any warranty that this Phase I 
assessment will in fact qualify client for the innocent landowner, contiguous property owner or prospective 
purchaser defense to liability under CERCLA. Geosphere’s assessment is limited strictly to identifying recognized 
environmental conditions associated with the Site. Results of this assessment are based upon the visual Site 
inspection of readily accessible areas of the Site conducted by Geosphere personnel, information from interviews 
with knowledgeable persons regarding the Site, information reviewed regarding historical uses, information 
provided by contacted regulatory agencies, and review of publicly available and practically reviewable information 
identifying current and historical uses of the property and surrounding properties. All conclusions and 
recommendations regarding the Site represent the professional opinions of the Geosphere personnel involved with 
the project, and the results of this report should not be considered a legal interpretation of existing environmental 
regulations. Geosphere assumes no responsibility or liability for errors in the public data utilized, statements from 
outside sources, or developments resulting from situations outside the scope of this project. We make no 
warranties, express or implied, including, without limitation, warranties as to merchantability or fitness for a 
particular purpose. 

8.3 Other Considerations 

8.3.1 Environmental Database Search 

Geosphere contracted Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) to perform a search for publically available 
agency records. The appended database report defines and summarizes the ASTM databases reviewed in the 
EDR report and notes if any listed facilities (including the Subject Property) were identified in the specified radius. 
The locations of the listed facilities identified in the EDR report were evaluated to determine which listed facilities 
were located within the ASTM specified search distance from the Subject Property boundary.  

8.3.2 User Provided Information 

Geosphere contacted the User with respect to the following information: 

 An evaluation of the presence of Environmental Cleanup Liens for the Subject Property; 
 Activity and Use Limitations such as engineering controls (e.g., slurry walls, caps) and land use restrictions or 

institutional controls (e.g., deed restrictions, covenants) that may be in place for the Subject Property; 
 Specialized Knowledge that includes personal knowledge or experience related to the Subject Property or 

nearby properties based on professional experience or knowledge of the Subject Property; 
 Fair Market Value to evaluate whether a purchase price is significantly below Fair Market Value;  
 Obvious Indicators that involve past or present spills, stains, releases, cleanups on or near the Subject 

Property; and 
 Common Knowledge about specific chemicals, possible contamination, or past use of the Subject Property and 

surrounding area. 

Relevant information provided by the User is summarized under the appropriate headings of this report, Appendix 
D, and in the following table: 

 

 

 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        16                                                       29 July 2015 

Table 8-1 User-Provided Information 

User Request Response 
Environmental cleanup liens The User completed a preliminary report for environmental 

liens and none were identified.  

Activity and Use Limitations 
(AULs) and land use 
restrictions or institutional 
controls 

The User completed a preliminary report for environmental 
regarding AULs and/or land use restrictions and none were 
identified.  

Specialized knowledge User has no specialized knowledge of the Site other than what 
was provided to Geosphere as discussed under the relevant 
report sections.  
 

Fair market value User indicated fair market value. 

Obvious indicators that 
involve past or present spills, 
stains releases or cleanups 

User indicated no obvious indicators. 

Common knowledge about 
specific chemicals, possible 
contamination, or past use 

User indicated no other knowledge about Site.  The previous 
Phase I ESA was prepared by Geopshere’s parent company, 
Consolidated Engineering Laboratories (CEL).  The complete 
report is provided in Appendix C. 

8.4 Key ASTM Definitions 

ASTM E1527-13 prescribes the following definitions: 

Recognized Environmental Condition (REC): “the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or 
petroleum products in, on, or at a property: (1) due to release to the environment; (2) under conditions indicative of 
a release to the environment; or (3) under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the 
environment...”  

Controlled REC (CREC): “…a recognized environmental condition resulting from a past release of hazardous 
substances or petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority 
(for example, as evidenced by the issuance of a no further action letter or equivalent, or meeting risk-based criteria 
established by regulatory authority), with hazardous substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place 
subject to the implementation of required controls (for example, property use restrictions, activity and use 
limitations, institutional controls, or engineering controls)…” 

Historical REC: “…a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in 
connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority or 
meeting unrestricted use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property to any 
required controls (for example, property use restrictions, activity and use limitations, institutional controls, or 
engineering controls). Before calling the past release a historical recognized environmental condition, the 
environmental professional must determine whether the past release is a recognized environmental condition at the 
time the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is conducted (for example, if there has been a change in the 
regulatory criteria)...” 

De minimis condition: “…a condition that generally does not present a threat to human health or the environment 

and that generally would not be the subject of an enforcement action if brought to the attention of appropriate 
governmental agencies...” 

Data gap: “…a lack of or inability to obtain information required by this practice despite good faith efforts by the 

environmental professional to gather such information. Data gaps may result from incompleteness in any of the 
activities required by this practice, including, but not limited to Site reconnaissance (for example, an inability to 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        17                                                       29 July 2015 

conduct the Site visit), and interviews (for example, an inability to interview the key Site manager, regulatory 
officials, etc.)…”  

Data failure: “…a failure to achieve the historical research objectives…even after reviewing the standard historical 

sources … that are reasonably ascertainable and likely to be useful...”  

User: “…the party seeking to use Practice E1527 to complete an environmental Site assessment of the property. A 
user may include, without limitation, a potential purchaser of property, a potential tenant of property, an owner of 
property, a lender, or a property manager. The user has specific obligations for completing a successful application 
of this practice...” 



 

Geosphere Consultants, Inc.        18                                                       29 July 2015 

This Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was conducted by Ms. Tess Byler, PG, CHG, and Mr. Eric Swenson, PE, 
GE, PG reviewed the contents of this report. The professional qualifications for Ms. Byler and Mr. Swenson are 
appended to this report. Ms. Byler and Mr. Swenson meet the definition of Environmental Professional as defined in 40 
CFR 312.10 and have prepared the following declaration and signed in accordance below.  

 We declare that, to the best of our professional knowledge and belief, we meet the definition of Environmental 
Professional as defined in 40 CFR 312.10.   

 We have the specific qualifications based on education, training, and experience to assess a property of the nature, 
history, and setting of the Subject Property. We have developed and performed the all appropriate inquiries in 
conformance with the standards and practices set forth in 40 CFR 312. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 

Eric J. Swenson, P.G., P.E., G.E. 
President, Geosphere Consultants, Inc.  
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 

Tess Byler, P.G., C.Hg. 
Site Assessor and Project Manager 
Geosphere Consultants, Inc.  
 
 
 
Geosphere Consultants, Inc.  
2001 Crow Canyon Road, Suite 210  
San Ramon, CA 94583 
www.geosphereinc.net 
 
 
 

 

9. Environmental Professional 
Certification 

 

 

  

http://www.geosphereinc.net/


 

 

Figures 

 
 

 

  



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By Google Maps

Boundaries are approximate

FIGURE 1 - SITE LOCATION MAP

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By Google Maps

Boundaries are approximate

FIGURE 2 - SITE_LAYOUT

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



 

 

Appendix A  
Site Photographs 

 
 

 

  



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

 
 

 
Location Map  

 
 

Photograph:  1 Turlock Irrigation District junction box (ref #1) on NE corner.   
Buried irrigation line is marked parallel to W. Monte Vista Ave. 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

 
Photograph:  2 Buried irrigation line on north side 

 

Photograph:  3 Irrigation junction on NW corner, with Prime Shine Car Wash visible in 
background 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  4 View along Monte Vista; Prime Shine Car Wash on NW corner 

 

Photograph:  5 NW fence line with marker post for water main 

 
 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  6 Water main at inner NW corner 

 

Photograph:  7 Sewer connection adjacent to water main 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  8 View showing both sewer and water line in background 

 
 

Photograph:  9 Compacted area on NW boundary-dirt road turn around area 

 
 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  10 Old irrigation junction in center of property (1/2). This is the area that was 
identified to have a well pump in the 2005 Phase 1 ESA.  

 
 

Photograph:  11 Irrigation junction showing vertical source pipe as dark area in photo (2/2) 

 
 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  12 New (non-PCB) transformer (for adjacent buildings- Pizza Factory visible) 
and unknown piping on NW boundary; according to Rod Hawkins, PE 
these are stub-ins for future water to Site (1/2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photograph:  13 Western boundary looking south  



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  14 Western boundary looking north from Crowell toward Monte Vista 

 
 

Photograph:  15 Western boundary with water stub-ins. View to park and residences.  



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

 

Photograph:  16 Southern boundary with line of irrigation vents 

 

Photograph:  17 Close-up of irrigation vent 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  18 Southern boundary showing adjacent recharge basin and park area 

 

Photograph:  19 Southern boundary showing recharge basin and water main 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  20 Asphalt strip in middle of southeastern quadrant 

 

Photograph:  21 Possible irrigation pipe/culvert below asphalt segment 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  22 View of recharge basin from center of south boundary. Note irrigation line 
as linear feature in photo center.  

 

Photograph:  23 View of old Irrigation vent in center of property behind car wash 

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  24 View of southern boundary looking west, with recharge basin grading 
visible to the left.  

 
 

Photograph:  25 View of thin strip along southern boundary; looking east toward Dels Lane, 
residences are visible to the right, with parking for Yosemite Farm Credit 
out of view to the left.   

 



   CSU Stanislaus Phase 1  ESA 
   900 West Monte Vista Ave            9 July 2015 
   Turlock, California  95382 

 

Photograph:  26 View of thin strip looking west from sidewalk on Dels Lane 

 



 

 

Appendix B  
Historical Maps 

 
 

 

  



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1937

7/9/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1946

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1957

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1967

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1972

7/9/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1984

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 1987

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 2005

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 2006

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 2009

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 2010

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

AERIAL - 2012

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STUDENT HOUSING

91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR USGS Topographic Maps

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1916

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1941

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1953

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1969

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR USGS Topographic Maps

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1976

7/9/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



PREPARED FOR:
PROJ. MGR: DATE:
DRAWN BY: PROJ. #:

Image Provided By EDR Aerials

Boundaries are approximate

TOPO MAP - 1987

7/8/2015Tess Byler
AMCAL Equities, Inc.

Turlock California 95382
900 West Monte Vista Ave.

CSU STANISLAUS PHASE 1

T. Byler 91-01753-F



 

 

Appendix C  
2005 Environmental Report 

 
 

 

  















































































































































































































































































 

 

Appendix D  
User Questionnaire 

 
 

 

  







 

 

Appendix E  
Environmental Regulatory 
Database Report 

 

 

 

  



FORM-NULL-PVC

 tropeR paM suidaR yrammuS RDE

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

Turlock Village
900 West Monte Vista Ave.
Turlock, CA  95382

Inquiry Number: 4345672.2s
July 06, 2015



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 8

Orphan Summary 34

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting SSURGO Soil Map A-5

Physical Setting Source Map A-13

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-15

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

TC4345672.2s   Page 1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data
Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from
other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings,
environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any
property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2015 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole
or in part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4345672.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E 1527-13) or custom requirements developed for the evaluation of
environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

900 WEST MONTE VISTA AVE.
TURLOCK, CA 95382

COORDINATES

37.5207000 - 37˚ 31’ 14.52’’Latitude (North): 
120.8604000 - 120˚ 51’ 37.44’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 10Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
689083.3UTM X (Meters): 
4154584.2UTM Y (Meters): 
105 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

TP Target Property:
USGS 7.5 min quad indexSource:

W Target Property:
USGS 7.5 min quad indexSource:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20120628Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:



4345672.2s   Page  2

11 TURLOCK REHAB CENTER ENVIROSTOR Lower 4930, 0.934, SSE

10 WALNUT ELEMENTARY 2- 4219 N. WALNUT ROAD SCH, ENVIROSTOR Higher 3971, 0.752, NNW

9 AUTO KING 150 MONTE VISTA HIST CORTESE, LUST Higher 2487, 0.471, East

8 2701  DELS LN EDR US Hist Cleaners Lower 983, 0.186, SSE

B7 BAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SH 1525 W MONTE VISTA CA FID UST, SWEEPS UST Lower 913, 0.173, WNW

B6 BAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SH 1525 W MONTE VISTA A HIST UST Lower 913, 0.173, WNW

5 821  GEORGETOWN AVE EDR US Hist Cleaners Higher 649, 0.123, SSE

4 1345  DALARNA WAY EDR US Hist Auto Stat Lower 554, 0.105, WSW

A3 CA STATE UNIVERSITY 801 MONTE VISTA HIST CORTESE, LUST Higher 343, 0.065, ENE

A2 CA STATE COLLEGE STA 800 MONTE VISTA AVE RCRA-SQG, FINDS, CA FID UST, HIST UST, SWEEPS UST Higher 321, 0.061, NE

1 RITE AID NO 6512 1000 W MONTE VISTA A RCRA-LQG Higher 189, 0.036, NW

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
900 WEST MONTE VISTA AVE.
TURLOCK, CA  95382

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4345672.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR.

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG: A review of the RCRA-LQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/10/2015 has revealed that
there is 1 RCRA-LQG site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     RITE AID NO 6512   1000 W MONTE VISTA A NW 0 - 1/8 (0.036 mi.) 1 8

RCRA-SQG: A review of the RCRA-SQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/10/2015 has revealed that
there is 1 RCRA-SQG site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE COLLEGE STA   800 MONTE VISTA AVE NE 0 - 1/8 (0.061 mi.) A2 8

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

ENVIROSTOR: A review of the ENVIROSTOR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 05/04/2015 has revealed
that there are 2 ENVIROSTOR sites within approximately 1 mile  of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WALNUT ELEMENTARY 2-   4219 N. WALNUT ROAD NNW 1/2 - 1 (0.752 mi.) 10 10
Facility Id: 50000001
Facility Id: 50070031
Status: No Further Action
Status: Certified

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     TURLOCK REHAB CENTER    SSE 1/2 - 1 (0.934 mi.) 11 10
Facility Id: 80000619
Status: No Further Action



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4345672.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

LUST: A review of the LUST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/13/2015 has revealed that there are
2 LUST sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE UNIVERSITY   801 MONTE VISTA ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.065 mi.) A3 8
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0609900011

     AUTO KING   150 MONTE VISTA E 1/4 - 1/2 (0.471 mi.) 9 10
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Status: Remediation Plan
Global Id: T0609900383

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

CA FID UST: A review of the CA FID UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 10/31/1994 has revealed
that there are 2 CA FID UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE COLLEGE STA   800 MONTE VISTA AVE NE 0 - 1/8 (0.061 mi.) A2 8
Status: A
Facility Id: 50000857

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SH   1525 W MONTE VISTA WNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.173 mi.) B7 9
Status: A
Facility Id: 50003432

HIST UST: A review of the HIST UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 10/15/1990 has revealed that
there are 2 HIST UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE COLLEGE STA   800 MONTE VISTA AVE NE 0 - 1/8 (0.061 mi.) A2 8
Facility Id: 00000002619

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SH   1525 W MONTE VISTA A WNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.173 mi.) B6 9
Facility Id: 00000032169



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4345672.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5

SWEEPS UST: A review of the SWEEPS UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 06/01/1994 has revealed
that there are 2 SWEEPS UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE COLLEGE STA   800 MONTE VISTA AVE NE 0 - 1/8 (0.061 mi.) A2 8
Status: A
Tank Status: A
Comp Number: 2619

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SH   1525 W MONTE VISTA WNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.173 mi.) B7 9
Status: A
Tank Status: A
Comp Number: 32169

Other Ascertainable Records

HIST CORTESE: A review of the HIST CORTESE list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/01/2001 has
revealed that there are 2 HIST CORTESE sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target
property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CA STATE UNIVERSITY   801 MONTE VISTA ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.065 mi.) A3 8
Reg Id: 500012

     AUTO KING   150 MONTE VISTA E 1/4 - 1/2 (0.471 mi.) 9 10
Reg Id: 500446

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR US Hist Auto Stat: A review of the EDR US Hist Auto Stat list, as provided by EDR, has revealed
that there is 1 EDR US Hist Auto Stat site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target
property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   1345  DALARNA WAY WSW 0 - 1/8 (0.105 mi.) 4 9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC4345672.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 6

EDR US Hist Cleaners: A review of the EDR US Hist Cleaners list, as provided by EDR, has revealed
that there are 2 EDR US Hist Cleaners sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target
property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   821  GEORGETOWN AVE SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.123 mi.) 5 9

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   2701  DELS LN SSE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.186 mi.) 8 9



E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

ORPHAN SUMMARY

City EDR ID Site Name Site Address Zip Database(s)

Count: 15 records.

STANISLAUS COUNTY   S107539404 MONTE VISTA RD, 1/4 MI W OF MI 95380 CDL
STANISLAUS COUNTY   S107540167 ORCHARD OFF OF MONTE VISTA ROA      CDL
TURLOCK             S107538884 HWY 99 NORTH BOUND @ MONTE VIS      CDL
TURLOCK             S111293049 TURLOCK REGIONAL TRANSIT CENTER SW CORNER OF DELS LN AND HAWKE 95380 NPDES
TURLOCK             S116289033 PAUL OIL COMPANY INC DBA TURLOCK V 3420 W MONTE VISTARD 95380 EMI
TURLOCK             S113750683 CITY OF TURLOCK MONTE VISTA AVE AT TEGNER 95380 EMI
TURLOCK             1016873966 7-ELEVEN #39593 - TURLOCK 3420 W MONTE VISTA 95380 FINDS
TURLOCK             1016428263 TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT /WESTP 67 MONTE VISTA 95380 FINDS
TURLOCK             1011988223 CITY OF TURLOCK MONTE VISTA AVENUE AND TEGNER 95380 FINDS
TURLOCK             S107539403 MONTE VISTA RD, 1/2 MI W OF CE 95380 CDL
TURLOCK             S107737771 3707 E MONTE VISTA 95380 CDL
TURLOCK             S109254215 MONTPILER RD, 1/4 MILE WEST OF 95382 CDL
TURLOCK             S107539623 OAKDALE RD, 1/4 MILE SOUTH OF 95380 CDL
TURLOCK             S107540119 ON VINCENT, 1/2 MI S OF MONTE 95380 CDL
TURLOCK             S107526606 1/2 MI W MONTE VIEW AVE (X LOO 95380 CDL

TC4345672.2s   Page 34

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe6iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiCUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB7w4d0IfYd398SJqc3ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB7zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe7iqeCOXZWMxr4iwi3UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB4w4d0IfYd398SJqc9ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xBAzSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe6iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiBUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzBBw4d0IfYd398SJqcBehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB7zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred4ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe5K6oA1BZSJiBueAeCiqeCOXZWMxr4iwi6UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB3w4d0IfYd398SJqc7ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xBCzSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred9ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe5K6oA1BZSJiBueAeBiqeCOXZWMxr4iwiCUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB3w4d0IfYd398SJqc6ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred6ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTeAK6oA1BZSJiBueAe8iqeCOXZWMxr4iwi3UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB9w4d0IfYd398SJqcBehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWm4K8fPBAuogJ09i0c3ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred9ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTeBK6oA1BZSJiBueAeAiqeCOXZWMxr4iwi6UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzBCw4d0IfYd398SJqc9ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB9zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWm4K8fPBAuogJ09i0c3ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred9ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe7K6oA1BZSJiBueAe5iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiBUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB5w4d0IfYd398SJqc9ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWm4K8fPBAuogJ09i0c3ssu1mIdG8jvZAat45lZx9TEJqy8Jred4ygYQPvOfrwQ3aTeCK6oA1BZSJiBueAeBiqeCOXZWMxr4iwiBUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB5w4d0IfYd398SJqc5ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe6iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiCUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB7w4d0IfYd398SJqc3ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTeAK6oA1BZSJiBueAe6iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiAUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzBAw4d0IfYd398SJqcAehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB4zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredCygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe5K6oA1BZSJiBueAe8iqeCOXZWMxr4iwi7UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB5w4d0IfYd398SJqc4ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB8zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe6iqeCOXZWMxr4iwiCUK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB9w4d0IfYd398SJqc5ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB6zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe7iqeCOXZWMxr4iwi3UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB4w4d0IfYd398SJqc4ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xBCzSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Ygm6QjJYpYtgPo9m1GZ3xJJQQf3jASuJCW4AiMFp0dSY9uvtarK8TV0P43koGM19GWT3.Hg1Ey4GiwzZPKL4Y.Wx1uRJNTrJfkK3tSuQpgNfAkZ3cGeBaPoAgSDSHODuUYFA5CUClEMWlmI4ly08xFAioGgMBZEFmQe6enBYHQLgRcymCZ.36kfQW86jsezJ7xn9EwKp9.uYeEst0su355EPFQaocA69aSiAfoj1DwKGJDRZELE30auxqjeJGOfJtye9VNJQTKEf6yM3YpQ40oxA9BlSRtvuDdn87lTC07UWbOB4STN6U8OYNXKgcmVmeY74Vb5QzxMjcxkJrmO3THSpVdXYfZptvf07G5kPvgWoAeF98t46Jcc1e6jGBpLZhM.7Nl3x.5kJazyJWUo8uBIQk5Bf7vr3jnf9T4IAqJqSTLiu4.KAcQJCnKmWJYa40MM5ULiiauaMDKxFPQj2Zvx00EEdZwJSqp.5JoO97eZu9.ev8pqvM6NaNwcrYzNKEp.6r.SYS31gf8kmT044cO.Q6Bujj9AJuk636.KpOvAYakmtrWmVK8fPBAuogJ09i0c4ssu1mIdG8jvZAat35lZx9TEJqy8JredAygYQPvOfrwQ3aTe8K6oA1BZSJiBueAe5iqeCOXZWMxr4iwi9UK1iVh0Ml0nFCzB9w4d0IfYd398SJqc3ehQ9dGkuMHPv5xB9zSkaorwrlt6Kqyp3


EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Proposed NPL
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPNPL LIENS

Federal Delisted NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Delisted NPL

Federal CERCLIS list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CERCLIS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500FEDERAL FACILITY

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site List

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CERC-NFRAP

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CORRACTS

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500RCRA-TSDF

Federal RCRA generators list

    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250RCRA-LQG
    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250RCRA-SQG
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-CESQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US INST CONTROL
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUCIS

Federal ERNS list

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPERNS

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000RESPONSE

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

    2  NR     2      0      0    0 1.000ENVIROSTOR

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWF/LF

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

    2  NR   NR      1      0    1 0.500LUST

TC4345672.2s   Page 4



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SLIC
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN LUST

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250INDIAN UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FEMA UST

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN VCP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500VCP

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEBRIS REGION 9
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWRCY
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHAULERS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500WMUDS/SWAT

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000HIST Cal-Sites
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250SCH
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Toxic Pits
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCDL
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS HIST CDL

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

    2  NR   NR    NR      1    1 0.250CA FID UST
    2  NR   NR    NR      1    1 0.250HIST UST
    2  NR   NR    NR      1    1 0.250SWEEPS UST

Local Land Records

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLIENS 2
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLIENS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEED

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLDS

TC4345672.2s   Page 5



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPMCS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSPILLS 90

Other Ascertainable Records

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPDOT OPS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DOD
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CONSENT
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000ROD
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UMTRA
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250US MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHIST FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSSTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPICIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPADS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPMLTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRADINFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFINDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRAATS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRMP
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA BOND EXP. PLAN
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPNPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUIC
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500Cortese
    2  NR   NR      1      0    1 0.500HIST CORTESE
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CUPA Listings
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Notify 65
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250WIP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPENF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHAZNET
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPEMI
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000INDIAN RESERV
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SCRD DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPWDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFinancial Assurance
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500PROC
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250HWT
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000HWP
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250MWMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLEAD SMELTERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPEPA WATCH LIST
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS FIN ASSUR
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH EPA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPCB TRANSFORMER
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCOAL ASH DOE

TC4345672.2s   Page 6



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.2502020 COR ACTION
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPRP

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000EDR MGP
    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250EDR US Hist Auto Stat
    2  NR   NR    NR      1    1 0.250EDR US Hist Cleaners

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRGA LUST
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRGA LF

   17    0    2    2    4    9    0- Totals --

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC4345672.2s   Page 7



TC4345672.2s  Page 8

A3 HIST CORTESECA STATE UNIVERSITY STANISLAUS S104403769
ENE LUST801 MONTE VISTA    N/A
< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.065 mi.
343 ft.

HIST CORTESE
    Reg Id: 500012

LUST
    Status: Case Closed
    Status: Completed - Case Closed
    Global Id: T0609900011

Click here to access the California GeoTracker records for this facility

A2 RCRA-SQGCA STATE COLLEGE STANISLAUS 1000388204
NE FINDS800 MONTE VISTA AVE CAD083864876
< 1/8 CA FID USTTURLOCK, CA  95380

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.061 mi. HIST UST
321 ft. SWEEPS UST

RCRA-SQG
    EPA Id: CAD083864876

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110002661361

CA FID UST
    Status: A
    Facility Id: 50000857

HIST UST
    Facility Id: 00000002619

SWEEPS UST
    Status: A
    Tank Status: A
    Comp Number: 2619

1 RCRA-LQGRITE AID NO 6512 1014387723
NW 1000 W MONTE VISTA AVE CAR000212944
< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.036 mi.
189 ft.

RCRA-LQG
    EPA Id: CAR000212944

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

http://www.web.edrnet.com/ordering/switchboard/redirect.aspx?s=GRR_CA_LUST_ST&global_id=T0609900011


TC4345672.2s  Page 9

8 EDR US Hist Cleaners 1015031900
SSE 2701  DELS LN    N/A
1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.186 mi.
983 ft.

B7 CA FID USTBAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SHOP S101626889
WNW SWEEPS UST1525 W MONTE VISTA    N/A
1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.173 mi.
913 ft.

CA FID UST
    Status: A
    Facility Id: 50003432

SWEEPS UST
    Status: A
    Tank Status: A
    Comp Number: 32169

B6 HIST USTBAR VEE DAIRY-OLD SHOP U001608602
WNW 1525 W MONTE VISTA AVE    N/A
1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.173 mi.
913 ft.

HIST UST
    Facility Id: 00000032169

5 EDR US Hist Cleaners 1015099103
SSE 821  GEORGETOWN AVE    N/A
< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.123 mi.
649 ft.

4 EDR US Hist Auto Stat 1015211572
WSW 1345  DALARNA WAY    N/A
< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.105 mi.
554 ft.

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC4345672.2s  Page 10

11 ENVIROSTORTURLOCK REHAB CENTER S107737478
SSE    N/A
1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.934 mi.
4930 ft.

ENVIROSTOR
    Facility Id: 80000619
    Status: No Further Action

10 SCHWALNUT ELEMENTARY 2-ACRE ADDITION S106153079
NNW ENVIROSTOR4219 N. WALNUT ROAD    N/A
1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.752 mi.
3971 ft.

SCH
    Facility Id: 50070031
    Facility Id: 50000001
    Status: Certified
    Status: No Further Action

ENVIROSTOR
    Facility Id: 50000001
    Facility Id: 50070031
    Status: No Further Action
    Status: Certified

9 HIST CORTESEAUTO KING S104403862
East LUST150 MONTE VISTA    N/A
1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95382

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.471 mi.
2487 ft.

HIST CORTESE
    Reg Id: 500446

LUST
    Status: Remediation Plan
    Status: Completed - Case Closed
    Global Id: T0609900383

Click here to access the California GeoTracker records for this facility

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

http://www.web.edrnet.com/ordering/switchboard/redirect.aspx?s=GRR_CA_LUST_ST&global_id=T0609900383


E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

CA AST Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Facilities California Environmental Protection Agency 08/01/2009 09/10/2009 10/01/2009
CA CA BOND EXP. PLAN Bond Expenditure Plan Department of Health Services 01/01/1989 07/27/1994 08/02/1994
CA CA FID UST Facility Inventory Database California Environmental Protection Agency 10/31/1994 09/05/1995 09/29/1995
CA CDL Clandestine Drug Labs Department of Toxic Substances Control 12/31/2014 03/10/2015 03/18/2015
CA CHMIRS California Hazardous Material Incident Report System Office of Emergency Services 04/14/2015 04/29/2015 05/21/2015
CA CORTESE "Cortese" Hazardous Waste & Substances Sites List CAL EPA/Office of Emergency Information 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 04/10/2015
CA DEED Deed Restriction Listing DTSC and SWRCB 03/09/2015 03/10/2015 03/18/2015
CA DRYCLEANERS Cleaner Facilities Department of Toxic Substance Control 02/18/2015 02/20/2015 03/12/2015
CA EMI Emissions Inventory Data California Air Resources Board 12/31/2012 03/25/2014 04/28/2014
CA ENF Enforcement Action Listing State Water Resoruces Control Board 04/30/2015 05/01/2015 05/13/2015
CA ENVIROSTOR EnviroStor Database Department of Toxic Substances Control 05/04/2015 05/05/2015 05/14/2015
CA Financial Assurance 1 Financial Assurance Information Listing Department of Toxic Substances Control 04/30/2015 05/01/2015 05/13/2015
CA Financial Assurance 2 Financial Assurance Information Listing California Integrated Waste Management Board 05/18/2015 05/22/2015 06/05/2015
CA HAULERS Registered Waste Tire Haulers Listing Integrated Waste Management Board 05/26/2015 05/28/2015 06/05/2015
CA HAZNET Facility and Manifest Data California Environmental Protection Agency 12/31/2013 10/15/2014 11/19/2014
CA HIST CAL-SITES Calsites Database Department of Toxic Substance Control 08/08/2005 08/03/2006 08/24/2006
CA HIST CORTESE Hazardous Waste & Substance Site List Department of Toxic Substances Control 04/01/2001 01/22/2009 04/08/2009
CA HIST UST Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database State Water Resources Control Board 10/15/1990 01/25/1991 02/12/1991
CA HWP EnviroStor Permitted Facilities Listing Department of Toxic Substances Control 05/26/2015 05/28/2015 06/05/2015
CA HWT Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter Database Department of Toxic Substances Control 04/13/2015 04/15/2015 04/23/2015
CA LDS Land Disposal Sites Listing State Water Qualilty Control Board 03/13/2015 03/18/2015 03/24/2015
CA LIENS Environmental Liens Listing Department of Toxic Substances Control 03/11/2015 03/13/2015 03/24/2015
CA LUST Geotracker’s Leaking Underground Fuel Tank Report State Water Resources Control Board 03/13/2015 03/18/2015 03/24/2015
CA LUST REG 1 Active Toxic Site Investigation California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 02/01/2001 02/28/2001 03/29/2001
CA LUST REG 2 Fuel Leak List California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 09/30/2004 10/20/2004 11/19/2004
CA LUST REG 3 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 05/19/2003 05/19/2003 06/02/2003
CA LUST REG 4 Underground Storage Tank Leak List California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 09/07/2004 09/07/2004 10/12/2004
CA LUST REG 5 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 07/01/2008 07/22/2008 07/31/2008
CA LUST REG 6L Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 09/09/2003 09/10/2003 10/07/2003
CA LUST REG 6V Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 06/07/2005 06/07/2005 06/29/2005
CA LUST REG 7 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 02/26/2004 02/26/2004 03/24/2004
CA LUST REG 8 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 02/14/2005 02/15/2005 03/28/2005
CA LUST REG 9 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Report California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 03/01/2001 04/23/2001 05/21/2001
CA MCS Military Cleanup Sites Listing State Water Resources Control Board 03/13/2015 03/18/2015 03/24/2015
CA MWMP Medical Waste Management Program Listing Department of Public Health 01/16/2015 03/10/2015 03/18/2015
CA NOTIFY 65 Proposition 65 Records State Water Resources Control Board 10/21/1993 11/01/1993 11/19/1993
CA NPDES NPDES Permits Listing State Water Resources Control Board 05/18/2015 05/20/2015 06/11/2015
CA PROC Certified Processors Database Department of Conservation 03/16/2015 03/18/2015 03/24/2015
CA RESPONSE State Response Sites Department of Toxic Substances Control 05/04/2015 05/05/2015 05/14/2015
CA RGA LF Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List Department of Resources Recycling and Recover 07/01/2013 01/13/2014
CA RGA LUST Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tan State Water Resources Control Board 07/01/2013 12/30/2013
CA SCH School Property Evaluation Program Department of Toxic Substances Control 05/04/2015 05/05/2015 05/14/2015
CA SLIC Statewide SLIC Cases State Water Resources Control Board 03/13/2015 03/18/2015 03/24/2015
CA SLIC REG 1 Active Toxic Site Investigations California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 04/03/2003 04/07/2003 04/25/2003
CA SLIC REG 2 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing Regional Water Quality Control Board San Fran 09/30/2004 10/20/2004 11/19/2004
CA SLIC REG 3 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 05/18/2006 05/18/2006 06/15/2006
CA SLIC REG 4 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing Region Water Quality Control Board Los Angele 11/17/2004 11/18/2004 01/04/2005

TC4345672.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



CA SLIC REG 5 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing Regional Water Quality Control Board Central 04/01/2005 04/05/2005 04/21/2005
CA SLIC REG 6L SLIC Sites California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 09/07/2004 09/07/2004 10/12/2004
CA SLIC REG 6V Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing Regional Water Quality Control Board, Victorv 05/24/2005 05/25/2005 06/16/2005
CA SLIC REG 7 SLIC List California Regional Quality Control Board, Co 11/24/2004 11/29/2004 01/04/2005
CA SLIC REG 8 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing California Region Water Quality Control Board 04/03/2008 04/03/2008 04/14/2008
CA SLIC REG 9 Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing California Regional Water Quality Control Boa 09/10/2007 09/11/2007 09/28/2007
CA SPILLS 90 SPILLS90 data from FirstSearch FirstSearch 06/06/2012 01/03/2013 02/22/2013
CA SWEEPS UST SWEEPS UST Listing State Water Resources Control Board 06/01/1994 07/07/2005 08/11/2005
CA SWF/LF (SWIS) Solid Waste Information System Department of Resources Recycling and Recover 05/18/2015 05/20/2015 06/05/2015
CA SWRCY Recycler Database Department of Conservation 03/16/2015 03/18/2015 03/26/2015
CA TOXIC PITS Toxic Pits Cleanup Act Sites State Water Resources Control Board 07/01/1995 08/30/1995 09/26/1995
CA UIC UIC Listing Deaprtment of Conservation 11/19/2014 12/15/2014 01/29/2015
CA UST Active UST Facilities SWRCB 03/13/2015 03/18/2015 03/26/2015
CA UST MENDOCINO Mendocino County UST Database Department of Public Health 09/23/2009 09/23/2009 10/01/2009
CA VCP Voluntary Cleanup Program Properties Department of Toxic Substances Control 05/04/2015 05/05/2015 05/14/2015
CA WDS Waste Discharge System State Water Resources Control Board 06/19/2007 06/20/2007 06/29/2007
CA WIP Well Investigation Program Case List Los Angeles Water Quality Control Board 07/03/2009 07/21/2009 08/03/2009
CA WMUDS/SWAT Waste Management Unit Database State Water Resources Control Board 04/01/2000 04/10/2000 05/10/2000
US 2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List Environmental Protection Agency 04/22/2013 03/03/2015 03/09/2015
US BRS Biennial Reporting System EPA/NTIS 12/31/2011 02/26/2013 04/19/2013
US CERCLIS Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liab EPA 10/25/2013 11/11/2013 02/13/2014
US CERCLIS-NFRAP CERCLIS No Further Remedial Action Planned EPA 10/25/2013 11/11/2013 02/13/2014
US COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data Department of Energy 12/31/2005 08/07/2009 10/22/2009
US COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List Environmental Protection Agency 07/01/2014 09/10/2014 10/20/2014
US CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library 12/31/2014 04/17/2015 06/02/2015
US CORRACTS Corrective Action Report EPA 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations EPA, Region 9 01/12/2009 05/07/2009 09/21/2009
US DOD Department of Defense Sites USGS 12/31/2005 11/10/2006 01/11/2007
US DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeli 07/31/2012 08/07/2012 09/18/2012
US Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions EPA 03/26/2015 04/08/2015 06/22/2015
US EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants EDR, Inc.
US EDR US Hist Auto Stat EDR Exclusive Historic Gas Stations EDR, Inc.
US EDR US Hist Cleaners EDR Exclusive Historic Dry Cleaners EDR, Inc.
US EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST Environmental Protection Agency 08/30/2013 03/21/2014 06/17/2014
US ERNS Emergency Response Notification System National Response Center, United States Coast 03/30/2015 03/31/2015 06/02/2015
US FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing Environmental Protection Agency 03/26/2015 04/08/2015 06/11/2015
US FEDLAND Federal and Indian Lands U.S. Geological Survey 12/31/2005 02/06/2006 01/11/2007
US FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing FEMA 01/01/2010 02/16/2010 04/12/2010
US FINDS Facility Index System/Facility Registry System EPA 01/18/2015 02/27/2015 03/25/2015
US FTTS FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fu EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxi 04/09/2009 04/16/2009 05/11/2009
US FTTS INSP FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fu EPA 04/09/2009 04/16/2009 05/11/2009
US FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 06/06/2014 09/10/2014 09/18/2014
US HIST FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing Environmental Protection Agency 10/19/2006 03/01/2007 04/10/2007
US HIST FTTS INSP FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Lis Environmental Protection Agency 10/19/2006 03/01/2007 04/10/2007
US HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System U.S. Department of Transportation 03/30/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System Environmental Protection Agency 01/23/2015 02/06/2015 03/09/2015
US INDIAN LUST R1 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 1 02/03/2015 04/30/2015 06/22/2015

TC4345672.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



US INDIAN LUST R10 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 10 02/03/2015 02/12/2015 03/13/2015
US INDIAN LUST R4 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 4 09/30/2014 03/03/2015 03/13/2015
US INDIAN LUST R5 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA, Region 5 04/30/2015 05/29/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN LUST R6 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 6 03/17/2015 05/01/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN LUST R7 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 7 03/30/2015 04/28/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN LUST R8 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 8 04/30/2015 05/05/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN LUST R9 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land Environmental Protection Agency 01/08/2015 01/08/2015 02/09/2015
US INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands Environmental Protection Agency 12/31/1998 12/03/2007 01/24/2008
US INDIAN RESERV Indian Reservations USGS 12/31/2005 12/08/2006 01/11/2007
US INDIAN UST R1 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA, Region 1 02/03/2015 04/30/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN UST R10 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 10 05/06/2015 05/19/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN UST R4 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 4 09/30/2014 03/03/2015 03/13/2015
US INDIAN UST R5 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 5 04/30/2015 05/26/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN UST R6 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 6 03/17/2015 05/01/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN UST R7 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 7 09/23/2014 11/25/2014 01/29/2015
US INDIAN UST R8 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 8 04/30/2015 05/05/2015 06/22/2015
US INDIAN UST R9 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 9 12/14/2014 02/13/2015 03/13/2015
US INDIAN VCP R1 Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing EPA, Region 1 09/29/2014 10/01/2014 11/06/2014
US INDIAN VCP R7 Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng EPA, Region 7 03/20/2008 04/22/2008 05/19/2008
US LEAD SMELTER 1 Lead Smelter Sites Environmental Protection Agency 11/25/2014 11/26/2014 01/29/2015
US LEAD SMELTER 2 Lead Smelter Sites American Journal of Public Health 04/05/2001 10/27/2010 12/02/2010
US LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information Environmental Protection Agency 02/18/2014 03/18/2014 04/24/2014
US LUCIS Land Use Control Information System Department of the Navy 05/28/2015 05/29/2015 06/11/2015
US MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System Nuclear Regulatory Commission 03/31/2015 04/09/2015 06/11/2015
US NPL National Priority List EPA 03/26/2015 04/08/2015 06/22/2015
US NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens EPA 10/15/1991 02/02/1994 03/30/1994
US ODI Open Dump Inventory Environmental Protection Agency 06/30/1985 08/09/2004 09/17/2004
US PADS PCB Activity Database System EPA 07/01/2014 10/15/2014 11/17/2014
US PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database Environmental Protection Agency 02/01/2011 10/19/2011 01/10/2012
US PRP Potentially Responsible Parties EPA 10/25/2013 10/17/2014 10/20/2014
US Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites EPA 03/26/2015 04/08/2015 06/22/2015
US RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System EPA 04/17/1995 07/03/1995 08/07/1995
US RADINFO Radiation Information Database Environmental Protection Agency 04/07/2015 04/09/2015 06/11/2015
US RCRA NonGen / NLR RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated Environmental Protection Agency 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US RCRA-CESQG RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US RCRA-LQG RCRA - Large Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US RCRA-SQG RCRA - Small Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal Environmental Protection Agency 03/10/2015 03/31/2015 06/11/2015
US RMP Risk Management Plans Environmental Protection Agency 02/01/2015 02/13/2015 03/25/2015
US ROD Records Of Decision EPA 11/25/2013 12/12/2013 02/24/2014
US SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing Environmental Protection Agency 03/07/2011 03/09/2011 05/02/2011
US SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems EPA 12/31/2009 12/10/2010 02/25/2011
US TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System EPA 12/31/2013 02/12/2015 06/02/2015
US TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act EPA 12/31/2012 01/15/2015 01/29/2015
US UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites Department of Energy 09/14/2010 10/07/2011 03/01/2012
US US AIRS (AFS) Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem ( EPA 10/16/2014 10/31/2014 11/17/2014
US US AIRS MINOR Air Facility System Data EPA 10/16/2014 10/31/2014 11/17/2014

TC4345672.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



US US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites Environmental Protection Agency 03/23/2015 03/24/2015 06/02/2015
US US CDL Clandestine Drug Labs Drug Enforcement Administration 02/25/2015 03/10/2015 03/25/2015
US US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List Environmental Protection Agency 03/16/2015 03/17/2015 06/02/2015
US US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information Environmental Protection Agency 03/09/2015 03/10/2015 03/25/2015
US US HIST CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register Drug Enforcement Administration 02/25/2015 03/10/2015 03/25/2015
US US INST CONTROL Sites with Institutional Controls Environmental Protection Agency 03/16/2015 03/17/2015 06/02/2015
US US MINES Mines Master Index File Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health A 12/30/2014 12/31/2014 01/29/2015

CT CT MANIFEST Hazardous Waste Manifest Data Department of Energy & Environmental Protecti 07/30/2013 08/19/2013 10/03/2013
NJ NJ MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Environmental Protection 12/31/2012 04/29/2015 05/29/2015
NY NY MANIFEST Facility and Manifest Data Department of Environmental Conservation 05/01/2015 05/06/2015 05/20/2015
PA PA MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Environmental Protection 12/31/2013 07/21/2014 08/25/2014
RI RI MANIFEST Manifest information Department of Environmental Management 12/31/2013 07/15/2014 08/13/2014
WI WI MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Natural Resources 12/31/2014 03/19/2015 04/07/2015

US Oil/Gas Pipelines GeoData Digital Line Graphs from 1:100,000-Scale Maps USGS
US Electric Power Lines Electric Power Transmission Line Data Rextag Strategies Corp.

US AHA Hospitals Sensitive Receptor: AHA Hospitals American Hospital Association, Inc.
US Medical Centers Sensitive Receptor: Medical Centers Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
US Nursing Homes Sensitive Receptor: Nursing Homes National Institutes of Health
US Public Schools Sensitive Receptor: Public Schools National Center for Education Statistics
US Private Schools Sensitive Receptor: Private Schools National Center for Education Statistics
CA Daycare Centers Sensitive Receptor: Licensed Facilities Department of Social Services

US Flood Zones 100-year and 500-year flood zones Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
US NWI National Wetlands Inventory U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
US USGS 7.5’ Topographic Map Scanned Digital USGS 7.5’ Topographic Map (DRG) USGS

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2010 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC4345672.2s     Page GR−4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



TC4345672.2s   Page A-1

geologic strata.
of the soil, and nearby wells.  Groundwater flow velocity is generally impacted by the nature of the
Groundwater flow direction may be impacted by surface topography, hydrology, hydrogeology, characteristics

  2.  Groundwater flow velocity.
  1.  Groundwater flow direction, and

Assessment of the impact of contaminant migration generally has two principal investigative components:

forming an opinion about the impact of potential contaminant migration.
EDR’s GeoCheck Physical Setting Source Addendum is provided to assist the environmental professional in

1987Most Recent Revision:
37120-E8 CERES, CAWest Map:

1987Most Recent Revision:
37120-E7 DENAIR, CATarget Property Map:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

105 ft. above sea levelElevation:
4154584.2UTM Y (Meters): 
689083.3UTM X (Meters): 
Zone 10Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
120.8604 - 120˚ 51’ 37.44’’Longitude (West): 
37.5207 - 37˚ 31’ 14.52’’Latitude (North): 

TARGET PROPERTY COORDINATES

TURLOCK, CA 95382
900 WEST MONTE VISTA AVE.
TURLOCK VILLAGE

TARGET PROPERTY ADDRESS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE ADDENDUM®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-2

should be field verified.
on a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
Source: Topography has been determined from the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated

SURROUNDING TOPOGRAPHY: ELEVATION PROFILES

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

t)
E

le
va

tio
n 

(f
t)

TP

TP
0 1/2 1 Miles

✩Target Property Elevation: 105 ft.

North South

West East

102

102

102

102

102

103

103

104

104

105

106

107

107

106

107

107

107

107

108
101

102

102

102

102

102

103

103

104

105

105

106

107

107

107

108

108

109

109

General SWGeneral Topographic Gradient:
TARGET PROPERTY TOPOGRAPHY

should contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
assist the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or,
Surface topography may be indicative of the direction of surficial groundwater flow.  This information can be used to
TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

collected on nearby properties, and regional groundwater flow information (from deep aquifers).
sources of information, such as surface topographic information, hydrologic information, hydrogeologic data
using site-specific well data. If such data is not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary to rely on other
Groundwater flow direction for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-3

Not Reported

GENERAL DIRECTIONLOCATION
GROUNDWATER FLOWFROM TPMAP ID

hydrogeologically, and the depth to water table.
authorities at select sites and has extracted the date of the report, groundwater flow direction as determined
flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted by environmental professionals to regulatory
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

AQUIFLOW®

 Search Radius: 1.000 Mile.

Not found     Status:
1.25 miles     Search Radius:

Site-Specific Hydrogeological Data*:

* ©1996 Site−specific hydrogeological data gathered by CERCLIS Alerts, Inc., Bainbridge Island, WA.  All rights reserved.  All of the information and opinions presented are those of the cited EPA report(s), which were completed under
a Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) investigation.

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
of groundwater flow direction in the immediate area.  Such hydrogeologic information can be used to assist the
Hydrogeologic information obtained by installation of wells on a specific site can often be an indicator
HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapDENAIR

NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY
NWI Electronic
Data CoverageNWI Quad at Target Property

Not ReportedAdditional Panels in search area:

06099C  - FEMA DFIRM Flood dataFlood Plain Panel at Target Property:

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapSTANISLAUS, CA

FEMA FLOOD ZONE
FEMA Flood
Electronic DataTarget Property County

and bodies of water).
Refer to the Physical Setting Source Map following this summary for hydrologic information (major waterways

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
Surface water can act as a hydrologic barrier to groundwater flow.  Such hydrologic information can be used to assist
HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-4

Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).
of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - a digital representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman
Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology

ROCK STRATIGRAPHIC UNIT GEOLOGIC AGE IDENTIFICATION

Stratifed SequenceCategory:CenozoicEra:
QuaternarySystem:
QuaternarySeries:
QCode:    (decoded above as Era, System & Series)

at which contaminant migration may be occurring.
Geologic information can be used by the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the relative speed
GEOLOGIC INFORMATION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

move more quickly through sandy-gravelly types of soils than silty-clayey types of soils.
characteristics data collected on nearby properties and regional soil information. In general, contaminant plumes
to rely on other sources of information, including geologic age identification, rock stratigraphic unit and soil
using site specific geologic and soil strata data. If such data are not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary
Groundwater flow velocity information for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW VELOCITY INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

1

3

2

1

8

2

4

6
5

7

0   1/16   1/8   1/4 Miles



TC4345672.2s   Page A-6

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 1.4
Max: 4   

50%), silt.
limit less than
Clays (liquid
SOILS, Silts and
FINE-GRAINED
50%), Lean Clay.
limit less than
Clays (liquid
SOILS, Silts and
FINE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysilt loam59 inches35 inches 3

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam35 inches11 inches 2

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam11 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Well drainedSoil Drainage Class:

textures.
moderately well and well drained soils with moderately coarse
Class B - Moderate infiltration rates. Deep and moderately deep,Hydrologic Group:

sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

HanfordSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 1

in a landscape. The following information is based on Soil Conservation Service SSURGO data.
for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation of soil patterns
Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil survey information
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) leads the National Cooperative Soil

DOMINANT SOIL COMPOSITION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-7

 

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

loamy sandSoil Surface Texture:

DelhiSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 3

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Sand.
Gravel and
Fragments,
200), Stone
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand59 inches 9 inches 2

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.3

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Sand.
Gravel and
Fragments,
200), Stone
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand 9 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

loamy sandSoil Surface Texture:

TujungaSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 2

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-8

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Well drainedSoil Drainage Class:

textures.
moderately well and well drained soils with moderately coarse
Class B - Moderate infiltration rates. Deep and moderately deep,Hydrologic Group:

sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

HanfordSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 4

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Clay

silt loam
fine sand to
stratified very59 inches40 inches 3

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand40 inches 9 inches 2

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand 9 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-9

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Sand.
Gravel and
Fragments,
200), Stone
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsand 9 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

sandSoil Surface Texture:

DelhiSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 5

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam59 inches11 inches 2

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam11 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-10

Min: 6.6
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam29 inches 9 inches 2

Min: 6.6
Max: 7.8

Min: 14
Max: 42   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam 9 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Moderately well drainedSoil Drainage Class:

movement of water, or soils with moderately fine or fine textures.
Class C - Slow infiltration rates. Soils with layers impeding downwardHydrologic Group:

sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

DinubaSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 6

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Sand.
Gravel and
Fragments,
200), Stone
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsand59 inches 9 inches 2

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-11

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand59 inches 9 inches 2

Min: 6.1
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand 9 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

ModerateCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

loamy sandSoil Surface Texture:

DelhiSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 7

Min: 7.9
Max: 8.4

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   

50%), silt.
limit less than
Clays (liquid
SOILS, Silts and
FINE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Clay

silt loam
fine sand to
stratified very59 inches29 inches 3

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-12

Min: 8.4
Max: 9.6

Min: 0.42
Max: 1.4   

50%), silt.
limit less than
Clays (liquid
SOILS, Silts and
FINE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Clay

to silt loam
fine sandy loam
stratified very59 inches29 inches 4

Min: 7.8
Max: 8.4

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsandy loam29 inches20 inches 3

Min: 7.3
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsand20 inches 7 inches 2

Min: 7.3
Max: 7.8

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularloamy sand 7 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Not hydric

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

textures.
moderately well and well drained soils with moderately coarse
Class B - Moderate infiltration rates. Deep and moderately deep,Hydrologic Group:

loamy sandSoil Surface Texture:

HilmarSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 8

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC4345672.2s   Page A-13

1/8 - 1/4 Mile SWCAOG11000279415   1

STATE OIL/GAS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

1/2 - 1 Mile SSWCADW50000029155   17
1/2 - 1 Mile WestCADW50000029210   16
1/2 - 1 Mile WSWCADW50000029203   C14
1/2 - 1 Mile SW21027   B12
1/2 - 1 Mile SW6148   11
1/2 - 1 Mile SW6175   B10
1/2 - 1 Mile EastCADW50000029225   9
1/2 - 1 Mile SECADW50000029193   8
1/2 - 1 Mile ESE6152   A7
1/2 - 1 Mile ESE6149   A6
1/2 - 1 Mile ESE6154   A5
1/2 - 1 Mile ESE6153   A4
1/2 - 1 Mile NW21030   3
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WNWCADW50000029224   2
1/8 - 1/4 Mile WNW6150   1

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

Note: PWS System location is not always the same as well location.

No PWS System Found

FEDERAL FRDS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1/2 - 1 Mile NorthUSGS40000183603   15
1/2 - 1 Mile WSWUSGS40000183543   C13

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1.000State Database
Nearest PWS within 1 mileFederal FRDS PWS
1.000Federal USGS

WELL SEARCH DISTANCE INFORMATION

SEARCH DISTANCE (miles)DATABASE

opinion about the impact of contaminant migration on nearby drinking water wells.
professional in assessing sources that may impact ground water flow direction, and in forming an
EDR Local/Regional Water Agency records provide water well information to assist the environmental

LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

CA



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

1
SW
1/8 - 1/4 Mile

CAOG11000279415OIL_GASClick here for full text details

1
WNW
1/8 - 1/4 Mile
Higher

6150CA WELLSClick here for full text details

2
WNW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

CADW50000029224CA WELLSClick here for full text details

3
NW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

21030CA WELLSClick here for full text details

A4
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

6153CA WELLSClick here for full text details

A5
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

6154CA WELLSClick here for full text details

A6
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

6149CA WELLSClick here for full text details

A7
ESE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

6152CA WELLSClick here for full text details

8
SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADW50000029193CA WELLSClick here for full text details

 Page: 1



®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

9
East
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADW50000029225CA WELLSClick here for full text details

B10
SW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

6175CA WELLSClick here for full text details

11
SW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

6148CA WELLSClick here for full text details

B12
SW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

21027CA WELLSClick here for full text details

C13
WSW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

USGS40000183543FED USGSClick here for full text details

C14
WSW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADW50000029203CA WELLSClick here for full text details

15
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

USGS40000183603FED USGSClick here for full text details

16
West
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADW50000029210CA WELLSClick here for full text details

17
SSW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADW50000029155CA WELLSClick here for full text details

 Page: 2



0%0%100%2.250 pCi/LBasement
Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedLiving Area - 2nd Floor
0%8%92%1.725 pCi/LLiving Area - 1st Floor

% >20 pCi/L% 4-20 pCi/L% <4 pCi/LAverage ActivityArea

Number of sites tested: 12

Federal Area Radon Information for STANISLAUS COUNTY, CA

             : Zone 3 indoor average level < 2 pCi/L.
             : Zone 2 indoor average level >= 2 pCi/L and <= 4 pCi/L.
     Note: Zone 1 indoor average level > 4 pCi/L.

Federal EPA Radon Zone for STANISLAUS County:  3 

0295382

______________________
> 4 pCi/LNum TestsZipcode

Radon Test Results                                                                                 

State Database: CA Radon                                                                           

AREA RADON INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

TC4345672.2s   Page 3



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model (DEM)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
EDR acquired the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model in 2002 and updated it in 2006. The 7.5 minute DEM corresponds
to the USGS 1:24,000- and 1:25,000-scale topographic quadrangle maps. The DEM provides elevation data
with consistent elevation units and projection.

Scanned Digital USGS 7.5’ Topographic Map (DRG)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
A digital raster graphic (DRG) is a scanned image of a U.S. Geological Survey topographic map. The map images
are made by scanning published paper maps on high-resolution scanners. The raster image
is georeferenced and fit to the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection.

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

Flood Zone Data: This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR in 2003 & 2011 from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Data depicts 100-year and 500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA.

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

AQUIFLOW       Information SystemR

Source:  EDR proprietary database of groundwater flow information
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System (AIS) to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted to regulatory authorities at select sites and has
extracted the date of the report, hydrogeologically determined groundwater flow direction and depth to water table
information.

GEOLOGIC INFORMATION

Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit
Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - A digital
representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).

STATSGO: State Soil Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Services
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) leads the national
Conservation Soil Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil
survey information for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation
of soil patterns in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO)
soil survey maps.

SSURGO: Soil Survey Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS)
Telephone:  800-672-5559
SSURGO is the most detailed level of mapping done by the Natural Resources Conservation Services, mapping
scales generally range from 1:12,000 to 1:63,360. Field mapping methods using national standards are used to
construct the soil maps in the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) database. SSURGO digitizing duplicates the
original soil survey maps. This level of mapping is designed for use by landowners, townships and county
natural resource planning and management.

TC4345672.2s     Page PSGR-1

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

FEDERAL WATER WELLS

PWS: Public Water Systems
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Public Water System data from the Federal Reporting Data System.  A PWS is any water system which provides water to at

least 25 people for at least 60 days annually.  PWSs provide water from wells, rivers and other sources.

PWS ENF: Public Water Systems Violation and Enforcement Data
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Violation and Enforcement data for Public Water Systems from the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) after

August 1995.  Prior to August 1995, the data came from the Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS).

USGS Water Wells: USGS National Water Inventory System (NWIS)
This database contains descriptive information on sites where the USGS collects or has collected data on surface
water and/or groundwater. The groundwater data includes information on wells, springs, and other sources of groundwater.

STATE RECORDS

Water Well Database
Source:  Department of Water Resources
Telephone:  916-651-9648

California Drinking Water Quality Database
Source: Department of Public Health
Telephone:  916-324-2319
The database includes all drinking water compliance and special studies monitoring for the state of California

since 1984. It consists of over 3,200,000 individual analyses along with well and water system information.

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

California Oil and Gas Well Locations
Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-1779
Oil and Gas well locations in the state.

RADON

State Database: CA Radon
Source: Department of Health Services
Telephone: 916-324-2208
Radon Database for California

Area Radon Information
Source: USGS
Telephone:  703-356-4020
The National Radon Database has been developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and is a compilation of the EPA/State Residential Radon Survey and the National Residential Radon Survey.
The study covers the years 1986 - 1992. Where necessary data has been supplemented by information collected at
private sources such as universities and research institutions.

EPA Radon Zones
Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-356-4020
Sections 307 & 309 of IRAA directed EPA to list and identify areas of U.S. with the potential for elevated indoor
radon levels.

TC4345672.2s     Page PSGR-2

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



OTHER

Airport Landing Facilities: Private and public use landing facilities
Source:  Federal Aviation Administration, 800-457-6656

Epicenters: World earthquake epicenters, Richter 5 or greater
Source:  Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

California Earthquake Fault Lines: The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary fault lines,
prepared in 1975 by the United State Geological Survey.  Additional information (also from 1975) regarding activity at specific fault
lines comes from California’s Preliminary Fault Activity Map prepared by the California Division of Mines and Geology.

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2010 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC4345672.2s     Page PSGR-3

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix F  
Professional Profiles 

 
 

 

  



GEOSPHERE CONSULTANTS, INC.

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
Page  1

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE SUMMARY

 Principal-in-Charge - Geotechnical Engineer

ERIC J. SWENSON, PE, GE, PG, CEG 

EDUCATION

MS, Civil Engineering
San Jose State University
BA, Geology
University of California 
Berkeley

State of California
Professional Civil  Engineer 
#52841
State of California
Geotechnical Engineer 
#2474 
State of California
Geologist #5857
State of California
Certified Engineering 
Geologist #1855
State of Hawaii
Professional Engineer 
#15339

REGISTRATIONS

American Society of Civil 
Engineers
Coalition for Adequate 
Student Housing
American Council of
Engineering Companies
Deep Foundations Institute

PROFESSIONAL

AFFILIATIONS

RELEVANT PROJECTS

Mr. Swenson is a highly experienced Geotechnical Engineer and Engineering Geologist 
who has worked in the design and construction of public works, institutional facilities, and 
major residential developments throughout the San Francisco Bay Area. His managerial 
responsibilities include project management, client development, staff  development, and 
profi t/loss control. His technical expertise includes practicing in a variety of soil, geologic and 
environmental conditions including, bay mud, liquefi able sands, landslide deposits, expansive 
soils, and active faulting. His responsibilities include overseeing projects during design and 
construction, including consultation, reviewing plans, and engineering observation during 
foundation construction and preparation of proposals, fi nal letters and reports.

Mr. Swenson was the Principal-in-Charge as well as the Geotechnical Engineer-of-
Record for this complicated commercial development that included soft bay mud, non-
engineered rubble fi ll, and liquefi able soils. He was responsible for the technical analysis
as well as project management.

 Lowes Store, South San Francisco, CA

Mr. Swenson was the project engineer and geologist for this major hillside residential
grading project which included moving over 1.5 million cubic yards of soil and crushed
rock as well as the development of over 500 units of residential development. The project 
included off -site improvements including 10-foot diameter storm-drain upgrades and
extensive waterlines.

 Northeast Ridge Residential Development, Brisbane, CA

Mr. Swenson was the Principal-in-Charge and Geotechnical Engineer-of-Record for this
Multi-Story development that included an 8-Story Parking Garage founded on deep
foundations as well as an over 500,000 square foot casino. The project included retaining
walls up to 100-feet high and off -site improvements including a highway interchange and 
water treatment plant.

 Red Hawk Casino, Shingle Springs, CA

Contra Costa Transit Village, Dublin Transit Village, Morrison Park – Avalon Bay Communities
Ruby Hill, Redwood Village, Vineyard Estates – Signature Properties
Cheyenne, Arbor Real, Diablo Grande – DR Horton
12 Central Valley Projects – Richmond American Homes

 Other Residential Developments:

Florin Towne Center – Stonehenge Property Group
Clayton Station – Regency Centers Applegate Ranch – Regency Centers 
 M8trix Casino Safeway Stores 
 Walmart Home Depot

 Other Commercial Developments:



GEOSPHERE CONSULTANTS, INC.

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
Page  5

Principal Hydrogeologist

TESS BYLER, P.G. C.Hg.

EDUCATION

M.S., Geology 

1988, George Washington 
University

B.S., Earth Science

1979, Florida International 
University

State of California
Professional Geologist 
#8131

State of California
Certified Hydrogeologist 
#928 

State of California
Qualified SWPPP Developer                                
Qualified SWPPP Practioner 
#25311

REGISTRATION

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE SUMMARY

Ms. Byler is highly experienced in multi-faceted environmental and water projects for private 
and public entities. Her work includes site investigations (including ASTM Phase I and II),  
facility audits and water quality/quantity projects. She is an eff ective program manager 
dedicated to delivering high quality work for clients from planning through implementation, 
including groundwater, stormwater LID, water quality/quantity, regulatory compliance, risk 
management  and site closure.

RELEVANT PROJECTS

• Sustainable groundwater management planning, San Francisquito Creek
Watershed-Evaluated existing hydrogeolgic information in watershed and
presented findings at public meeting, helped draft management approach and
resolution for stakeholders.

• Developed groundwater management plan for sole source aquifer. Obtained
regulator and public buy-in for a 377-acre research park overlying an EPA-
designated Special Groundwater Protection Area by developing and presenting
a groundwater management plan in public meetings.

• For hazardous waste incinerator placement, directed hydrologic suitability
studies, including recharge and discharge areas, and presented findings at
public hearings.

• Alameda County Water District—Onsite support  for UST and SLIC sites for the
Regional Water Quality Control Board and Department of Toxic Substances
Control.

 Water Resources

 Compliance

• US Air Force Academy: Site-wide compliance audit and preparation of pollution
prevention and waste minimization plans.

• Facility wide compliance audits of Koch Chemicals and National Semiconductor
(multiple sites nationwide).

• Union Pacific Laramie, Wyoming: Task Manager for RCRA Part B permit for closure
and post closure monitoring, and negotiation with agencies on approach.

• Designed and implemented Large Scale Retrospective and Small Scale
prospective groundwater and surface water studies for national pesticide
registration requirements.

 Site Investigation and Remediation

Program Manager, Confidential Client, Multiple source co-mingled volatile organic
chemical groundwater restoration projects. Responsible for exit strategies, long
term operation maintenance, regulatory compliance, and groundwater sampling.
Implemented system optimization and risk-management strategies, with more than
$500,000 identified value-added to clients over four years.

Program Manager, Confidential Client, Hexavalent Chromium in the Mojave Desert.  
Managed team of about 35 scientists, engineers, community relations specialists, 
and biologists to investigate and remediate ground water with hexavalent chromium 

AFFILIATIONS

Groundwater Resources 
Association of California

Environmental Volunteers

Subject Matter Expert, CA 
Hydrogeology

SCVWD, Appointments to 
Environmental and Water 
Resources and Independent 
Monitoring Committees



GEOSPHERE CONSULTANTS, INC.

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
Page  6

Principal Hydrogeologist

TESS BYLER, P.G. C.Hg.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE SUMMARY (continued)

in an area with no public water supply. Work included regulatory strategy and negotiation, permitting/CEQA, design 
and implementation of remedial systems (phytoremediation and in-situ bioremediation), site investigation, numeric 
ground water modeling, monitoring programs, removal actions, reserve estimates, background study, and exit strategy. 
Project was highly visible and litigious, necessitating detailed coordination with regulators and the public.  

Project Manager, Mare Island Landfill Areas—Technical Lead for remedial Investigation and Human Health and 
Ecological Risk Assessments. Primary author of Remedial Investigation Report that was approved by DTSC with only 
minor comments. Planned and oversaw implementation of Interim Removal Actions in three areas, and scoped 
a Focused Feasibility Study for the former Crane Test Area. Presented agency briefings on studies performed and 
obtained regulator buy-in for recommended course of action, as well as the public through the Restoration Advisory 
Board through monthly meetings.

Project Manager, SLAC National Accelerator Laboratory. Planned and conducted ground water and soil investigations 
in support of Stanford’s soil and groundwater restoration program. Primary author of RI report for the Test Lab/Central 
Lab area of SLAC, and NEPA assessment of Free Electron Laser experimental facility. Planned and implemented PCB 
soil/sediment removal actions in Research Yard and drainage channels to San Francisquito Creek, and performed an 
innovative treatment assessment for the former solvent underground storage tank area with Dense Nonaqueous Phase 
Liquid present. Developed strategy to address regulator concerns for land use restrictions at SLAC, with stakeholder 
buy-in with Stanford University and Department of Energy. Performed site wide evaluation of potential beneficial uses 
of groundwater at SLAC.  

Project Manager for Ground Water and Waste Pit Liquids Operable Units, Lowry Landfill, USEPA, Oversight of Potentially 
Responsible Parties [PRPs (Lowry Coalition)] from Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Studies through Remedial Design 
/Remedial Implementation. Obtained expert reviews on project documents for DNAPL in waste pits, planned and 
attended monthly PRP meetings with EPA. Other work included treatability studies, risk assessments, public meetings, 
preparation of the draft Record of Decision for USEPA, review of remedial design, operations and maintenance of 
selected remedial system and other support.



DWhitmore
Typewritten text
ATTACHMENT 5







BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE } RESOLUTION NO. 2015-
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND }
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING }
PROGRAM FOR THE VISTA STUDENT }
HOUSING PROJECT }

}

WHEREAS, the Coleraine Capital Group has submitted an application to the City
of Turlock seeking a General Plan Amendment and Rezone of the property from
Community Commercial to High Density Residential with a Planned Development (272)
to allow for the construction of a 180-unit, 600-bed student housing complex on three
parcels totaling approximately 9.7 acres; and

WHEREAS, the properties affected by this Resolution are located at 900 W.
Monte Vista Ave; 3000 Crowell Road; 1010 W. Monte Vista Ave. (Stanislaus County
APNs 071-006-021; 071-073-007 & 009); and

WHEREAS, a notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was
posted at the Stanislaus County Recorder’s Office on June 12, 2015; and

WHEREAS, a notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration for the
project was mailed to applicable responsible and interested agencies on June 10, 2015;
and

WHEREAS, a notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration for the
project was provided to property owners within 500 feet of the project boundary, and
other members of the public who requested notice, on June 10, 2015; and

WHEREAS, duly noticed public hearing was held by the Planning Commission of
the City of Turlock on July 16, 2015, to consider public input and testimony on the
potential environmental impacts of the project; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Turlock considered
information provided in the Initial Study, the responses and comments on the Initial
Study, and the comments received during the public hearing in making its findings and
determinations, and recommended that the City Council adopt the Mitigated Negative
Declaration of Environmental Effect and Mitigation Monitoring and Report Program; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Turlock held a duly noticed public
hearing on September 8, 2015, to solicit public comment and testimony regarding the
environmental document and the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock
does hereby adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Effect, attached
hereto as Exhibit 1, having determined that the City of Turlock, as lead agency for the

DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT A



Resolution No. 2015-
Page 2

proposed project, has prepared an Initial Study to make the following findings:

1. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, the proposed activity is
adequately described and is within the scope of the General Plan EIR.

2. All feasible mitigation measures developed in the General Plan EIR have
been incorporated into the project.

3. The analyses of cumulative impacts, growth inducing impacts, and
irreversible significant effects on the environment contained in the General
Plan EIR are adequate for this subsequent project.

4. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, a Statement of Overriding
Considerations was adopted for the General Plan EIR (City Council
Resolution 2012-156).  As identified in the Turlock General Plan EIR,
development in the project area would result in significant, and unavoidable,
impacts in the areas of noise, regional air quality, and the eventual loss of
agricultural land. The magnitude of these impacts can be reduced, but not
eliminated by the mitigation measures referenced in the initial study prepared
for this project and General Plan EIR. Therefore, mitigation measures
identified in the General Plan EIR, and its respective Statements of
Overriding Considerations, are adequate to mitigate the impacts from the
proposed project where feasible, and are hereby incorporated by reference.

5. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21157.6(a), having reviewed the
General Plan EIR, the City of Turlock finds and determines that:
a. no substantial changes have occurred with respect to the circumstances

under which the General Plan EIR was certified, and
b. that there is no new available information which was not and could not

have been known at the time the General Plan EIR was certified.
6. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, having reviewed the General

Plan EIR, the City of Turlock finds and determines that, based on substantial
evidence in the light of the whole record, that new information of substantial
importance shows that significant environmental effects have been identified,
but that feasible mitigation measures have been incorporated to revise the
proposed subsequent project to avoid or mitigate the identified effects to a
point where clearly no significant effects would occur.

7. The City has further determined, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15070(b) that:
a. Revisions to the project plans or proposals made by, or agreed to by the

applicant before a proposed mitigated negative declaration and initial
study are released for public review, would avoid the effects or mitigate
the effect to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur; and

b. There is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the
agency, that the project as revised may have a significant effect on the
environment.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock does
hereby adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, attached hereto as
Exhibit 2, required pursuant to Section 21081.6 of the Public Resources Code (CEQA)
to ensure compliance with the required mitigation measures or project revisions during



Resolution No. 2015-
Page 3

project implementation.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of
Turlock this 8th day of September, 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

___________________________
Kellie E. Weaver, City Clerk,
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,
State of California



DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT 1

































































DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT 2











3. The developer and/or property owner shall provide written consent, as provided in Section 
22608 of the Streets and Highways Code, to the formation of an assessment district to 
finance the maintenance of landscaping. 

Responsible Agency or Organization: Applicants, or successor in interest 
Implementation Schedule: Prior to the issuance of a building permit, grading permit or 

encroachment permit 
Verified By: Turlock Engineering, Municipal Services and Building 

Divisions 

I have read and agree to comply with the Mitigation Measures and Monitoring Program listed above. 

( 0-....~ e..:I\\ ~IC L '°' f' \ 'i-' A'-' btZo \.l....f"' I ,J (__ , 

<~~-ie/;5 
~cf:_\ - ~./'1 {:j1le--r-ph~J. )~re_ 

c ),,,__ c,w - 7- ... ,~ 
Property Owner 

6 









General Plan Amendment (GPA) 2015-03
High Density Residential (HDR)

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR)

EXHIBIT 1

CC CC

CC

CC

CC

CC CC

O

PARK

O O

RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL

RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL

RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL RL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (RL)
PARK SPACE
OFFICE (O)
HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR)
COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (CC)



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK

IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING THE ZONING } ORDINANCE NO. -CS
MAP OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA, }
ATTACHED TO TITLE 9 OF THE TURLOCK }
MUNICIPAL CODE [REZONE 2015-01 - }
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 272 }
(THE VISTA STUDENT HOUSING)] }
________________________________________ }

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Turlock as follows:

SECTION 1.  ZONING CHANGE. The Zoning Map of the City of Turlock is hereby

amended to rezone the following described property from Community Commercial and Planned

Development No. 267 to Planned Development No. 272 (with an underlying zoning of High

Density Residential (R-H)), under the provisions of Title 9 of the Turlock Municipal Code, and

said real property shall hereafter be subject to the provisions and regulations of this Chapter

relating to property located within such Districts.  Said properties are described in Exhibit 1

located at 900 W. Monte Vista Ave (Stanislaus County APNs 071-006-021) and in Exhibit 2

located at 3000 Crowell Road and 1010 W. Monte Vista Ave. ( Stanislaus County APNs 071-

073-007 and -009).

SECTION 2.  ZONING MAP. The Zoning Map of the City of Turlock, California, attached

to Title 9 of the Turlock Municipal Code is amended to appear as set forth on the map attached

hereto (Exhibit 3), which is hereby made a part of this ordinance by reference.

SECTION 3.  ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION. The City Council adopted

Resolution 2015-XX adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Effect and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, having determined that there is no substantial

evidence, in the light of the whole record, that the project as revised may have a significant

effect on the environment, and hereby directs that a Notice of Determination be filed with the

Stanislaus County Recorder and the California State Office of Planning and Research.

SECTION 4.  VALIDITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, word, or phrase,

of this ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or other wise invalid for any reason, such decision

DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT C



Ordinance No. -CS
Page 2

shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. The Turlock City Council hereby

declares that they would have passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence,

clause, word, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more section, subsection,

sentence, clause, word, or phrase be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 5.  ENACTMENT. This ordinance shall become effective and be in full force

on and after thirty (30) days of its passage and adoption.  Prior to the expiration of fifteen (15)

days from the passage and adoption thereof, this ordinance shall be published in a newspaper

of general circulation printed and published in the County of Stanislaus, State of California,

together with names of the members of the City Council voting for and against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Turlock

this 22nd day of September, 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

Signed and approved this 22nd day of September, 2015.

______________________
GARY SOISETH, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________
Kellie E. Weaver, City Clerk,
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,
State of California







Rezone 2015-01
Planned Development 272

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 272 (PD 272)

EXHIBIT 3



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK

IN THE MATTER OF ESTABLISHING } RESOLUTION NO. 2015-
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR PLANNED }
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 272 (PD-272) }
[REZONE 2015-01, THE VISTA STUDENT }
HOUSING - SCHEME 2] }

}

WHEREAS, the Coleraine Capital Group has submitted an application to the City of
Turlock seeking authorization to amend the Zoning Map attached to the City of Turlock Zoning
Regulations (Title 9 of the Turlock Municipal Code) for three properties totaling approximately
9.7 acres from Planned Development 267 and Community Commercial (C-C)) to Planned
Development 272 (with an underlying zoning district of High Density Residential (R-H)) to allow
for the construction of a 180-unit, 600-bed student housing complex; and

WHEREAS, the project will be developed generally consistent with the standards of the
High Density Residential (R-H) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the properties affected by this Resolution are located at 900 W. Monte
Vista Ave; 3000 Crowell Road; 1010 W. Monte Vista Ave. (Stanislaus County APNs 071-006-
021; 071-073-007 & 009); and

WHEREAS, said applications have been studied by the City Staff and
recommendations made to the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the request on July 16, 2015, and
recommended that the proposed amendment to the official City of Turlock Zoning Map and
establishment of Planned Community Development District No. 272 [PD-272 (Rezone 2015-01) –
The Vista Student Housing Scheme 2] be authorized by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2015, the City Council considered the request, the Planning
Commission recommendation, and the Environmental Review documentation and testimony and
found that Rezone No. 2015-01, and Planned Community Development District No. 272 (PD-
272) will not have a significant adverse impact upon the environment and directed that a Notice
of Determination for a Mitigated Negative Declaration be filed.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Turlock adopted General Plan Amendment
2015-03 (The Vista Student Housing) by passed Ordinance No. CS-XXXXX on September 22,
2015, zoning the above described property Planned Development District No. 272 (PD-272),
contingent upon approval of the conditions of approval contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock does
hereby approve the development of Planned Community Development District No. 272 (PD-272), in
accordance with the plan filed as part of the Planning Commission consideration, referred to above,
and which is on file in the office of the Development Services Director. The following conditions
shall apply, as well as compliance with all applicable codes and ordinances:

DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT D



Planning Division (668 -5640)

1. This approval authorizes the construction of a 180-unit, 600-bed student housing
complex.

2. The site will also include the construction of an approximately 6,460 square foot club
house with outside volleyball and basketball courts and a swimming pool, and
approximately 596 parking spaces.

3. The project shall be developed in accordance with the site plan and elevations for
Scheme 2 (three, four-story buildings) (Exhibit 1) submitted with the application on April
27, 2015, as revised on August 19, 2015. In order to execute this site plan, exceptions
to the landscape setbacks for the parking lot area and the R-H zoning district height
limit of 40 feet shall be granted as depicted in the attached site plans and elevations.
The landscaping setback for the parking lot along Crowell road shall be a minimum of
ten (10’) feet. The landscaping setback along Monte Vista Blvd. shall be a minimum of
fifteen (15’) feet. The parking lot landscape setback along the property line abutting the
public park shall be a minimum of five (5’) feet. The parking lot landscape setback
abutting the property line abutting the residential neighborhood shall be a minimum of
ten (10’) feet. Buildings may be as tall as 50 feet in height. Building 3 shall be a
minimum of twenty (20’) feet from the property line abutting the public park. In all other
respects, the site shall be developed as shown in Exhibit 1. The property may be
enclosed by a wrought-iron style fence, rather than the required masonry fence
between the project area and the adjacent commercial uses, except as specified in
Condition #95. The driveway entry gate from Crowell Road shall remain open during the
hours of 6:00 a.m. and 11 p.m. and shall be set back a minimum of twenty feet from the
property line (back of sidewalk) to allow at least one vehicle to stop without blocking the
sidewalk. The number of parking spaces shall be approximately 596 parking spaces.

4. The residents of the complex shall be limited to adult students, 18 years of age and
older. No minors shall be permitted to reside in the complex. A deed restriction shall be
recorded on the property establishing this limitation on the residents of the complex.
Prior to the issuance of a building permit or any other permit leading to the
implementation of the project, evidence that such a deed restriction has been recorded
on the properties shall be provided to the City of Turlock Planning Division.

5. The club house and outdoor recreational facilities shall have set hours of operation. The
volleyball and basketball courts will be limited to operating between the hours of 10:00
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Sunday through Thursday, and 10:00 a.m. to 11 p.m. on Friday
and Saturday. Swimming pool hours will be from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 Midnight each day.
The fitness center will be open from 6:00 a.m. to Midnight each day. Study rooms, the
theater room and the computer lab will be open 24 hours each day. The game room
and lounge will be open from 8:00 a.m. to Midnight each day. Leases will provide for
community “quiet hours” from 11:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. each day.

6. On-site management will be available 24 hours/day, 7 days/week, including property
employees and resident assistants in each building. Security will be provided by a third
party security company. Security personnel will monitor the use of the adjacent park to



ensure that the project’s residents do not create a public nuisance due to noise, litter, or
any other violations of City ordinances, or other local, State and/or federal laws.

7. To ensure that the complex is operated by a single management firm, the properties will
either be merged or a deed restriction shall be recorded on each parcel requiring that
the student housing project be operated under a single management firm or structure.

8. This project shall comply with the conditions contained in Chapter 6, City Design, of the
Turlock General Plan for “Site Design Standards for Multifamily Attached Gated
Communities” and the “General Development Standards - Applicable to All Gated
Communities”.

9. The operator of The Vista Student Housing shall offer a shuttle service to and from the
California State University, Stanislaus, campus for The Vista residents during school
hours. The shuttle service will also provide transportation to and from community retail,
recreational and entertainment venues on a scheduled basis.

10.Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of the project, a
parcel map or lot line adjustment is required prior to development to merge the three
subject parcels into one parcel or adjust the property lines to meet City and California
Building Code requirements. The City reserves the right to impose additional conditions
prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy to ensure that the project continues to
operate in the future as a single entity, such as, but not limited to, requirements to
record reciprocal parking, access, operating and maintenance agreements, and
establish deed restrictions such that the individual parcels may not be sold off
independently may be required in the event that the parcels are not merged. These
conditions may be imposed at the discretion of the Development Services Director.

11.All “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Turlock Planning Commission
Resolution 91-54 (Exhibit 2) are conditions of approval for this project.

12.The project shall be developed consistent with the standards and uses established for the
High Density Residential zoning district in TMC §9-3-200ART: Residential Districts, and the
City of Turlock’s adopted Design Guidelines.

13.The Planned Development shall not expire but may be amended as provided in TMC 9-2-
113(h) or by obtaining approval of a new General Plan Amendment and Rezone for the
properties.

14.The property owner agrees, as a condition of this permit, to defend at his sole expense,
any action brought against the City arising from the approval of this permit.  The
property owner shall reimburse the City for any court costs and legal fees.  The City
may, at its sole discretion, participate in the defense of any such action; such
participation shall not relieve the applicant of his obligation under this condition.

15. In the event the City determines that it is necessary to take legal action to enforce any
of the provisions of these conditions, and such legal action is taken, the applicant shall
be required to pay any and all costs of such legal action, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, incurred by the City, even if the matter is not prosecuted to a final
judgment or is amicably resolved, unless the City should otherwise agree with applicant
to waive said fees or any part thereof. The foregoing shall not apply if the permittee
prevails on every issue in the enforcement proceeding.



16.All activities and uses conducted on the site shall comply with all applicable local, State
and federal laws and regulations at all times.

17.The Mitigation Measures contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration adopted in
City Council Resolution 2015-xx shall be incorporated into the project as conditions of
approval and are enforceable as such under the provisions of TMC 9-5-1100(ART)
(Enforcement).

18. In accordance with TMC 9-2-115, the trash and recycling enclosure shall comply with
the City of Turlock Standards and Specifications for construction and materials.  Each
trash and recycling enclosure shall be designed to allow walk-in access without having
to open the main enclosure gate. The property owner shall supply and maintain
adequate bins and containers for recycling and waste disposal.

19.All HVAC units, trash/recycle/refuse compactors and other mechanical equipment shall
be screened from public view and adjacent properties, including adjoining rights-of-way,
in accordance with TMC 9-2-118.  The method of screening such equipment shall be
architecturally integrated into the main structure in terms of design, materials, colors,
shape and size.  Prior to issuance of the building permit, this requirement shall be
verified through review of construction plans.

20.All electrical, gas, telephone, cable television, and similar distribution lines, including
existing distribution lines, providing immediate service to the site shall be installed
underground.

21.All above-ground structures located, such as backflow protection devices, fire department
connections and transformers, shall be located on the site to minimize visual impact and
shall be screened from public view by landscaping or other methods approved by the City
of Turlock Planning Division.

22.Any fencing constructed as part of the project shall comply with the City’s Design
Guidelines for commercial districts and shall be constructed of wrought-iron style materials,
masonry walls with pilasters, or other materials that are architecturally integrated into the
overall project design. Pedestrian access gates shall be provided to adjacent commercial
uses and the public park area to encourage walking and make it easier for residents to
access these facilities. Pedestrian gates shall be locked at all times, with access to the site
achieved through the use of a key card or similar device. Wrought-iron style fencing and
gates may be utilized, except that a seven (7’) foot tall privacy fence shall be constructed
next to the existing fences along the southern property line abutting the single-family lots.
An alternating row of fifteen (15) gallon evergreen trees shall be planted along the privacy
wall to provide additional screening. Vines shall be planted and trained onto any solid fence
to discourage graffiti on the privacy wall.

23.A line of 24-inch box evergreen trees shall be planted along the southern property line
abutting the single-family lots. The landscape plan shall include specifications regarding
the type, spacing and installation size of these trees.

24.Bicycle racks and lockers shall be installed in accordance with TMC 9-2-211.

25.Fully detailed landscape and irrigation plans shall be submitted to the Engineering
Division for review and approval as part of the improvement plan submittal process. The
project shall provide landscaping and open space as shown in the approved site plans.
The landscape and irrigation plans shall comply with TMC 9-2-109 and the Water



Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO). Please contact the Planning or Engineering
Division for information and required WELO documentation.

26.All planting areas shall be protected with raised concrete curbs.

27.An average three (3) foot high [minimum 2½ foot and maximum 3½ foot] continuous
screen shall be installed between all parking areas and public streets. A screen shall
consist of one or any combination of the following: a) walls; b) landscaped berms; c)
fences; and / or d) plant materials.

28.Deciduous non-fruiting trees shall be incorporated into the planting plan within the
parking lot and around the building to provide shade relief from the summer sun.

29.A variety of plant types and species shall be incorporated into the planting scheme to
provide interest and color.  No one (1) species of plant shall exceed 20 percent (20%)
of the plant material.  Turf shall not exceed 25 percent (25%) of the total landscaped
area.

30.All planting areas shall include a three (3) inch top dressing of an organic mulch or
equivalent material.  Mulches shall be reapplied as part of a regular maintenance
program to reduce evaporation, soil compaction, and weeds.

31.All parking spaces shall comply with dimensional standards for the City of Turlock.
Standard parking spaces measure 9 feet x 19 feet and compact spaces measure 8 feet
x 16 feet.  No more than 30 percent of the required parking spaces may be compact
spaces. The parking lot design shall comply with TMC 9-2-200(ART) (Off-Street Parking
and loading Regulations) and the City’s Standards and Specifications.

32.Wheel stops are required whenever the abutting landscape or sidewalk is less than ten
(10) feet in width. Parking stalls may overhang two (2’) feet into a landscape bed that is
at least ten (10’) feet in depth. No wheels stops are required in these cases. Parking
stalls may not be designed in such a manner as to allow vehicles to park over or into
required pedestrian pathways and/or sidewalks.

33.Parking lot shade trees shall be installed along all parking areas in accordance with
TMC §9-2-109: one shade tree per five (5) parking spaces.  Parking lot shade trees
shall be planted in landscape islands within the parking lot.  Tree spacing shall be such
that every tree trunk is within 30 feet of the trunk of another tree.

34.All on-site lighting shall be limited in intensity, shielded and/or situated in such a manner
that light does not spill over to adjacent properties. On-site security lighting shall be
located and directed so as not to spill over onto adjoining properties. A lighting plan is
required for review and approval as part of the building permit and site improvement
plan submittals.

35.No signs have been approved as part of this permit.  All signage shall comply with the
provisions established in the Turlock Municipal Code (TMC 9-2-500 ART) and the
General Sign Guidelines contained in the City of Turlock’s adopted Design Guidelines,
as required by TMC 9-5-1002 and shall obtain the appropriate permits.

36.A reciprocal access and parking agreement shall be recorded on all parcels in this
project. A copy of this recorded agreement shall be submitted to the Planning Division
prior to occupancy of any new construction associated with this project.



37.Construction shall be limited to the hours allowed in the Municipal Code of 7:00 a.m. to
7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on weekends. The
standards of Turlock's Noise Ordinance (TMC 9-2-300ART) are applicable to the
development during construction and occupancy.

38.The City of Turlock Noise Ordinance (TMC 902-300), shall be adhered to at all times. No
amplified music or live entertainment is permitted on the site.

39.To adequately fund the ongoing provision of public services (including but not limited to
police, fire, and public maintenance), the subject property shall be included in a (Mello
Roos) Community Facilities District to fund a Services Mitigation Fee.  A building permit
shall not be issued until the Community Facilities District has been established and the
subject property has been annexed thereto.  Pursuant to City Council Resolution 2004-031,
annexation to the proposed Communities Facilities District is required to mitigate the
project's impacts upon police, fire and public maintenance operations.

Building Division (668 -5560)

40.Applicant must obtain a building permit and must comply with all model codes and the
City of Turlock Municipal Code, including accessibility and egress. The applicant shall
provide five sets of plans for review, designed to meet the 2013 California Building
Code or the latest version of the California Building Code adopted by the State of
California.

Fire Services (668 -5580)

41.The project shall comply with the current California Fire Code, National Fire Code
(NFPA), California Mechanical Code, and the Turlock Municipal Code in effect at the
time of building permit application. THIS IS NOT A PLAN REVIEW.  Additional
requirements may be applicable upon Fire Dept. review of building plans.

42.Before vertical construction begins:  1) Onsite fire hydrant shall be in service; 2) Blue
hydrant markers shall be in street; 3) Fire access roadway shall be installed to support
the imposed load of fire apparatus weighing at least 75,000 pounds; 4) Temporary
address signage shall be clearly visible from the primary roadway.

43.Buildings or structures shall have an approved asphalt or concrete fire access road
installed and accepted prior to final inspection.

44.Address numerals shall be a minimum of 6” tall with ¾” stroke, contrast with
background, be clearly visible from the primary roadway and be illuminated either
internally or externally between dusk and dawn daily.  TMC 4-3-204 (g)

45.Permanent all weather signage shall be installed: (minimum 3” letters/numbers)

a. MAIN ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT

b. MAIN GAS SHUT OFF

c. FIRE CONTROL ROOM

d. FDC (address numerals)

e. ELECTRICAL ROOM



f. HVAC units shall be numbered (coordinating with breakers and fire alarm
system)

46.A Knox Box key safe may be installed to the right of the main entrance door. Safe shall
be securely mounted between 4 feet and 8 feet above finished grade.  Safe may be
ordered online at www.knoxbox.com or by visiting our office.

47.A Knox Box key safe shall be installed on each suite and at the Fire Control Room.
Boxes shall be installed to the right of the main entrance doors between 4 feet and 8
feet above finished grade.  Boxes may be ordered online at www.knoxbox.com or by
visiting our office.

48.Two Locking FDC plugs (2 – 2 1/2”) shall be installed.  Plugs may be ordered at
www.knoxbox.com or by visiting our office.  Please allow 7 – 10 days for delivery.

49.Fire sprinklers shall be required. Four (4) sets of fire sprinkler plans, architectural plans
and calculations shall be submitted by a licensed C-16 fire sprinkler contractor to the
Fire Department in accordance with NFPA 13 and City of Turlock Municipal Code,
including standpipe system..

50.On-site fire hydrant may be required.  Location and number to be determined at civil
plan review.  Fire hydrant shall be within 75 feet of the FDC.

51.Four (4) sets of fire alarm system plans shall be submitted to fire department by a
licensed C-10 fire alarm professional.  System shall be U.L certified and monitored by a
U.L. central station for the life of the building.  U.L. certificate required at final.

52.Fire extinguishers with a minimum rating of 2-A:10-B:C shall be provided such that no
point in the building is further than 75-foot travel distance to an extinguisher.
Extinguishers shall be mounted on the wall or in cabinets, such that the top of the
extinguisher is no more than four (4’) feet above floor level.

53.Electrical disconnect shall be accessible from the exterior of the building or in a secure
electrical room that opens directly to the outside. Disconnect or electrical room will be
identified with an approved all weather sign.

54.Standpipes shall be installed in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code requirements.
(TMC 4-3-219)

55.Fire lane requirements shall be met.  Fire lanes shall be painted throughout project.

Engineerin g Division (668-5520)

56.The Developer shall submit on-site and off-site (Non-structural) improvement plans to
the Engineering Division for review and approval.  Please submit an improvement plan
application along with a $325.00 deposit, six (6) sets of civil improvement plans
including erosion control and landscape plans, one (1) copy of the land use permit and
one (1) copy of the soils report (California Building Code requirement).  Landscape
plans shall meet the requirements of the Water Efficiency Landscape Ordinance. All
parcels disturbing more than one acre of land must apply for a Notice of Intent with the
State of California Water Quality Control Board.  The W.D.I.D. number, which is
provided by the state, must be provided prior to grading permit issuance.

57.Developer shall procure a grading permit from the Engineering Division for all on-site
(Non-Structural) work prior to issuance of any building permits. Upon approval of the



on-site Improvement plans, please submit a grading permit application and a cost
estimate for all on-site (Non- Structural) work.

58.Developer shall procure an encroachment permit from the Engineering Division for all
off-site work done within existing City of Turlock right of way, proposed right of way and
within any easements prior to the issuance of any building permits. Upon approval of
the off-site improvement plans, please submit an encroachment permit application, a
cost estimate or for all off-site work, liability insurance as detailed in the encroachment
permit application listing the City of Turlock as additional insured and an improvement
security equal to 110% of the valuation of the work in the form of a bond, letter of credit,
cash or check.

59.Prior to improvement plan approval, a detailed hydrology/drainage study will be required to
be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval.  The study shall be prepared by
a registered Civil Engineer and shall include existing and proposed conditions.

60.The City of Turlock standard improvements necessary for fire and safety purposes shall be
installed and accepted by the Fire Department prior to the issuance of any Building Permit.

61.The development shall have access to a water service prior to the issuance of any Building
Permits as reasonably approved by the City Engineer and Fire Marshall.

62.Provide easements per the Turlock Irrigation District.

63.Provide 10 foot Public Utility Easement behind property along all street frontages.

64. If any on-site public utilities are proposed, the developer shall dedicate 10’ minimum
public utility easements (PUEs) over these utilities to the City of Turlock prior to sign-off
any permits. The construction of all utilities within the public right of way and in PUEs
shall be performed under an encroachment permit.

65.Developer shall provide written consent, as provided in Section 54717 of the California
Government Code, to the levy of an assessment to finance the operation and
maintenance of drainage, flood control, street maintenance, and street lighting service
which benefits the area to be developed.

66.Developer shall provide written consent, as provided in Section 22608 of the Streets
and Highways Code, to the formation of an assessment district to finance the
maintenance of landscaping.

67.The developer will be required to pay the development impact fees adjusted to the
current Engineering News Record.

68.All building pads shall be 1/2 foot higher than the nearest flow-line high point.  This
condition may be waived by the City Engineer if upon review of the hydrology study he
deems it is not necessary.

69.Full off-site improvements (curb, gutter, sidewalk, pave-out, fire hydrants, electroliers,
etc.) must be installed along all existing frontage roads and new streets. These off-site
improvements must be designed and installed per City of Turlock standard
specifications and drawings.

70.Striping and signing plans shall be included as a part of the final improvement plans.
Stop signs shall be installed by the developer. Street name signs will be installed by the
City, but paid for by the developer.  Developer will prepare a striping plan utilizing



thermoplastic and pavement markers in accordance with Caltrans Standard Plans and
the MUTCD.

71.Monument signs, fences and trees shall be back thirty-feet (30’) from driveway
entrances, per City Standard Drawing ST-13 “Clear Vision Triangle”.

72.The City Engineer reserves the right to require full roadway reconstruction or a 2”
asphalt overlay from curb to curb on all existing frontage roads if in the City Engineer’s
opinion the integrity of the roadway has been compromised by utility cuts or
construction practices. Asphalt oil shall be PG 70-10.

73.All trenching in existing public pavement must be repaved per City Standard T-1 unless
approved by the City Engineer. Developer shall pay a Trench Restoration Fee for each
trench.

74.Accessible signage and striping for accessible parking shall meet the requirements of
the current California Building Code.  The additional signage required under Section
11B-502.8 shall notify owners that towed vehicles may be reclaimed at: Turlock Police
Department or by telephoning (209) 668-5550.

75.The City of Turlock will require that there is an individual in responsible charge of the Land
Surveying activities within the bounds of proposed development as follows:

 Acknowledgement of Monument Responsibility certificate signed and sealed by a
Licensed Land Surveyor or a Professional Engineer authorized to perform Land
Surveying in the State of California, will be required prior to issuance of the grading
and/or encroachment permit.

 Acknowledgement of Monument Preservation certificate signed and sealed by a
Licensed Land Surveyor or a Professional Engineer authorized to perform Land
Surveying in the State of California, will be required prior to final signed acceptance
of the grading and/or encroachment permit.

Municipal Services Division (668 -5590)

76.The property owner shall be responsible for providing water/sewer/G.I. for all tenants. If
the property owner will not be the responsible party for these services, the property
owner/developer shall contact City of Turlock Municipal Services at 668-5590 to
establish an acceptable agreement/organization to be responsible for providing such
services.

77.Prior to issuance of a building permit, water and sewer utilities shall be reviewed and
approved by Municipal Services (668-5590).

78.Prior to issuance of a building permit, the property owner/developer shall contact City of
Turlock Municipal Services at 668-5590 to determine whether a grease interceptor shall
be required. If required, the grease interceptor shall be incorporated into the building
plans, prior to the issuance of a building permit.

79.Prior to issuance of a building permit, storm water facilities shall be reviewed and
approved by Municipal Services (668-5590).



Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities Division (6 68-5594)

80.Street trees shall be installed in the sidewalk in accordance with City of Turlock
standards (TMC §7-7-500 and §9-2-109(8)(ii)). The variety of street tree to be installed
is Chinese Pistache (“Keith Davey”). Any variation from the above listed street tree
requirement must first be approved by the City of Turlock Parks, Recreation & Public
Facilities Maintenance Department.  The property owner or developer shall contact this
department at (209) 668-5594 for review of tree layout and inspection prior to
installation of street trees.

Turlo ck Irrigation District (Todd Troglin 883 -8367 or David Porath (209) 883 -8659)

81.A 42-inch diameter irrigation pipeline and 10-foot easement belonging to Improvement
District 1230A, the Thornburg Ditch, runs from east to west along the south side of
Monte Vista Avenue. This existing unreinforced cast in place pipe must be replaced
with Reinforced Concrete Pipe (RCP). Additionally, there are two inactive irrigation
pipelines located on the property that must be removed and/or appropriately
abandoned in place. Work on irrigation facilities can only be performed during the non-
irrigation season which typically runs from November l, thru March 1, but can vary.

82. It will be necessary for the developer to submit plans detailing the existing irrigation
facilities, relative to the proposed site improvements, in order for the District to
determine specific impacts and requirements.

83.The District shall review and approve all maps and plans of the project. Any
improvements to this property which impact irrigation facilities shall be subject to the
District's approval and meet all District standards and specifications. The applicant will
need to provide irrigation improvement plans and enter into an Irrigation Improvements
Agreement for the required irrigation facility modifications. There is a District Board
approved time and material fee associated with this review.

84.An additional 5-foot Public Utility Easement must be dedicated along the south side of
Monte Vista for a total of 15 feet when combined with of the existing 10-foot irrigation
easement.

85.The owner/developer must apply for a facility change for any pole or electrical facility
relocation that may be necessary or otherwise required by the City. Facility changes are
performed at developer's expense.

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (557-6400)

86.The applicant shall be responsible for complying with all applicable rules and
regulations adopted by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

Central Vall ey Regional Water Quality Control Board (916 -464-4684)

87.Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb
less than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total
disturbs one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit
f or Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities (Construction
General Permit), Construction General Permit Order No. 2009-009 - DWQ
Construction activity subject to this permit includes clearing, grading , grubbing ,
disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or excavation, but does not include
regular maintenance activities performed to restore the original line, grade, or capacity



of the facility. The Construction General Permit requires the development and
implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). For more
information on the Construction General Permit , visit the State Water Resources
Control Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml.

88.The Phase I and II MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff
flows from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices
(BMPs) to the maximum extent practicable (MEP) . MS4 Permittees have their own
development standards, also known as Low Impact Development (LID)/post-
construction standards that include a hydromodification component. The MS4 permits
also require specific design concepts for LID/post-construction BMPs in the early stages
of a project during the entitlement and CEQA process and the development plan review
process. For more information on which Phase I MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit
the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/municipal_permi
ts/ For more information on the Phase II MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the
State Water Resources Control Board at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/phase_ii_municipal.
shtml

89.Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the
regulations contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 97-03 -
DWQ. For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit , visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/industrial_gener
al_permits/index.shtml

90. If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or
wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from
the United States Army Corps of Engineers ( USACOE) . If a Section 404 permit is
required by the USACOE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the permit
application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards. If the
project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to contact
the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration Permit
requirements. If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404
permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACOE
at (916) 557-5250.

91. If an USACOE permit (e. g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit,
Letter of Permission, Individual Permit; Regional General Permit, Programmatic
General Permit), or any other federal permit (e. g., Section 9 from the United States
Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance of waters of the United
States (such as streams and wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be
obtained from the Central Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities.
There are no waivers for 401 Water Quality Certifications.

92. If USACOE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., "non-
federal" waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed
project will require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by



Central Valley Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control
Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other waters of the
State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to State regulation. For
more information on the Water Quality Certification and WDR processes, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/help/business_help/permit2.shtml .

93. If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to
discharge the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will
require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit. Dewatering discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to water
quality and may be covered under the General Order for Dewatering and Other Low
Threat Discharges to Surface Waters (Low Threat General Order) or the General Order
for Limited Threat Discharges of Treated/Untreated Groundwater from Cleanup Sites,
Wastewater from Superchlorination Projects, and Other Limited Threat Wastewaters to
Surface Water (Limited Threat General Order). A complete application must be
submitted to the Central Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under these General
NPDES permits. For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the
application process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board_decisions/adopted_orders/generaLo
rders/r52013 - 0074.pdf For more information regarding the Limited Threat General
Order and the application process ,visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board_decisions/adopted_orders/general_
orders/r5-2013-0073.pdf

Planning Commission

94.No parking charge shall be levied on the residents of the facility.

95.A masonry wall shall be constructed along the eastern property line from Monte Vista
Avenue to the north side of the open area located in the southeast portion of the site.
The masonry wall shall not extend along southern property line of APN’s 071-006-022
and -023 (Yosemite Farm Credit) on the north side of the open space area leading to
Dels Lane.

Stanislaus County Environmental Resources (Bella Badal, 525 -7600)

96.Applicants must submit three (3) sets of proposed food facility to the County
Environmental Resources Department for review and approval for compliance with
California Retail Food Code Section 114380. The submitted food facility plans are to be
complete, easily readable, and drawn to scale and specification.

97.Applicants proposing to construct a public swimming pool shall submit legible plans and
specifications to DER for review and written approval prior to commencing the work and
in advance of any building, plumbing, or electrical permit (Title 22 CHSC). A Risk
Management Prevention Program must be implemented prior to operation of the pool if
chlorine gas is used in excess of 100 pounds.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Turlock
this 22nd day of September, 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

___________________________
Kellie E. Weaver, City Clerk,
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, State of
California



DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT 1































DWhitmore
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT 2
























































































	Agenda
	2C
	2D
	2E
	2F
	5A
	5B
	5C
	5D
	5E
	5F
	5G
	5H
	5I
	5J
	5K
	5L
	5M
	5N
	5O
	5P
	5Q
	5R
	5S
	5T
	5U
	5V
	5W
	5X
	5Y
	5Z
	5AA
	5AB
	5AC
	5AD
	5AE
	5AF
	5AG
	5AH
	5AI
	7A
	7B
	8A
	8B
	8C
	8D
	8E
	8F

